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Independent auditors' report 

Arzan Financial Group for Financing and Investment KPSC 
(formerly International Finance Company KPSC) 
Kuwai~ 

Report on the Consolidated Financial Statements 
We have audited the accompanying consolidated financial statements of Arzan Financial Group for 
Financing and Investment KPSC (formerly International Finance Company KPSC) ("the parent 
company") and subsidiaries, (collectively "the group") which comprise the consolidated statement' of 
financial position as at 31 December 2013, and the consolidated statement of income, consolidated 
statement of comprehensive income, consolidated statement of changes in_ equity and consolidated 
statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and a summary of significant accounting policies and 
other explanatory notes. · 

Management's Responsibility for the Consolidated Financial Statements 
Management of the parent company is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these 
consolidated financial statements in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards as 
adopted for use in the State of Kuwait, and for such internal control as management determines is 
necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free from material 
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. 

Auditors' Responsibility 
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial statements based on our audit. 
We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing. Those standards require 
that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance 
about whether the consolidated financial statements are free from material misstatement. 

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in 
the consolidated financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditors' judgment, 
including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, 
whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditors consider internal control 
relevant to the entity's preparation and fair presentation of the consolidated financial statements in order 
to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing 
an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity's intemal control. An audit also includes evaluating the 
appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by 
management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the consolidated financial statements. 

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis· for 
our audit opinion. 
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Opinion 
In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial 
position of Arzan Financial Group for Financing and hwestment KPSC (formerly International Finance 
Company KPSC) and subsidiaries as at 31 December 2013, and their financial performance and cash flows 
for the year then ended in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards as adopted for use 
in the State ofKuwait. 

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Matters 

In our opinion, proper books of account have been kept by the parent company and the consolidated 
financial statements, together with the contents of the report of the parent company's board of directors 
relating to these consolidated financial statements, are in accordance therewith. We further report that we 
obtained all the information and explanations that we required for the purpose of our audit and that the 
consolidated financial statements incorporate all information that is required by the Companies Law No. 
25 of 2012 and by the parent company's mticles and memorandum of association, as amended, that an 
inventory was duly carried out and that, to the best of our knowledge and belief, no violations of the 
Companies Law No. 25 of2012 or ofthe parent company's Articles and Memorandum of Association·, as 
amended, have occurred during the year ended 31 December 2013, that might hhve had a material effect on 
the business or the cons of idated financial position of the group. -

We further report that, during the course of our audit, we have not become aware of any material 
violations, during the year ended 31 December 201 3, of the provisions of Law No. 7 of 2010, as amended, 
concerning the Capital Markets Authority, and its related regulations. 

We fmther report that, during the course of our audit, we have not become aware of any material 
violations, during the year ended 31 December 2013, of the provisions of Law No. 32 of 1968, as 
amended, concerning currency, the Central Bank of Kuwait and the organisation of banking business, and 
its related regulations. 

~<·------~==="''---'~~· 
Qais M. Al-Nisf 
License No. 38-A 
BDO AI Nisf & Partners 

Kuwait: 16 Mm·ch 2014 
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AbdullatifM. AI-Aiban (CJ">A) 
(Licence No. 94-A) 
Grant Thornton 
AI-Qatami, Al-Aiban & Partners 
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Arzan Financial Group for Financing and Investment KPSC 
(formerly International Finance Company KPSC) and subsidiaries 
Kuwait 

Consolidated statement of financial position 
As at 31 December 2013 

31 December 
Notes 2013 

KD 
Assets 
Cash and cash equivalents 6 12,062,146 
Instalment credit debtors 7 9,454,266 
Investments at fair value through statement of 

. income 8 8,120,193 
Held to maturity investment 283,050 
Accounts receivable and other assets 9 5,016,378 
Due from related parties 30 108,920 
Properties held for trading 10 1,849,329 
Available for sale investments 11 75,973,784 
Tnvestment"in associates 12 54,071,423 
Investment properties 13 1,950,185 
Prope1iy and equipment 14 2,725,633 
Total assets 171,615,307 

Liabilities and equity 
Liabilities 
Due to banks 15 2,374,655 
Accounts payable and other liabilities 16 7,492,130 
Due to related parties 30 271,060 
Term loans 17 16,000,000 
Murabaha payable 18 6,800,000 
Provision for end of service indemnity 579,856 
Total liabilities 33,517,701 

Equity 
Share capital 19 80,288,257 
Share premium 19 32,950,027 
Treasury shares 20 (597,141) 
Treasury shares reserve 
Legal reserve 21 6,977,142 
Voluntary reserve 21 
Foreign currency translation reserve 3,718 
Fair value reserve 14,565,861 
Accumulated losses (12,709,887) 
Equity attributable to the owners of the parent 
company 121,477,977 
Non-controlling interests 4 16,619,629 
Total equity 138,097,606 
Total liabilities and equity 171,615,307 

[ 
Jassem Hasan Zaim\1 

Chairman and ChiefExecutive Officer 

(Restated) 
31 December 1 .January 

2012 2012 
KD KD 

8,506,863 5,809,017 
23,120,497 37,768,137 

7,626,053 7,369,584 
283,050 

5,029,119 5,423,582 
182,106 79,736 

3,236,722 3,251,332 
51,795,829 49,644,719 
33,408,914 28,166,915 

2,009,247 2,068,310 
2,789,239 2,857,349 

137,987,639 142,438,681 

2,519,280 4,610,311 
6,567,527 7,544,902 
2,222,582 1,478,866 
1,706,800 4,251,882 
8,400,000 10,000,000 

495,654 1,270,230 
21,911,843 29,156,191 

80,288,257 80,288,257 
32,950,027 32,950,027 

(931,786) (1 ,432,303) 
157,713 

7,087,901 7,087,901 
151,824 501,900 

(189,578) (240,008) 
8,615,587 7,978,617 

(15,081,492} (15, 1 02,296) 

112,890,740 112,189,808 

3,185,056 1,092,682 
116,075,796 113,282,490 
137,987,639 142,438,681 

The notes set out on pages 9 to 63 form an integral part of these consolidated financial statements. 
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Arzan Financial Group for FinanCing an<l JnvestmentKPSC '~ -
0 

, 

(Formerly known as International Filiance Coi:nplmy KPS9X~P:d. subsidiaries 
Kuwait -. >'~;;:: ,:t< -- · .' __ - :-~,,;:"\:<~:<-'-' ~- · 

Consolidated statement of inc~ine _ 
For the year ended 31 December 201X': 

Revenue 
Income fi·om instalment credit debtors 
Rental income 
Interest income 
Gain on sale of investments at fair value through statement of 
income 
Change in fair value of investments at fair value through 
statement of income 
Gain /(loss) on sale of available for sale investrnents 
Gain /(loss) on sale of properties held for trading 
Share of results of associates 
Gain on sale of investment in an associate 
Gain /(loss) on foreign currency exchange 
Dividend income 
Brokerage income 

- Advisory fees 
Reversal of provision for instalment credit debtors-net 
Other income 

Expenses and othet· charges 
Staff costs 
General and administrative expenses 
Finance costs 
Depreciation 
Provision for doubtful debts 
Impairment of available for sale investments 

Profit I (loss) for the year before contribution to Kuwait 
Foundation for the Advancement of Sciences, National 
Labour Support Tax and Zakat 
Contribution to Kuwait Foundation for the Advancement of 
Sciences 
National Labour Support Tax 
Zakat 

Profit I (loss) for the year 

Attributable to: 
Owners of the parent company 
Non-controlling interests 

Basic and dil\lted earnings per share attributable to the 
owners of the parent company 

Year ended 
31 December 

Notes 2013 

23 

12 
I2 

24 

7 

25 

9 
1I 

26 

KD 

I,6I5,070 
I62,708 
410,626 
I20,0I8 

(364,95I) 

I ,338,985 
I83,736 

I ,227,119 
184,625 
274,529 

1,323,617 
304,975 
328,709 

2,375,505 
I43,067 

9,628,338 

(I,7I9,495) 
(1 ,452,624) 
(1,499,226) 

(176,762) 
(603,019) 

(1 1S3I ,234) 
(7,282,360) 

2,345,978 

(63,028) 
(15,646) 

2,267,304 

2,37I,605 
(104,301) 

2,267,304 

2.978 Fils 

Year ended 
31 December 

2012 
KD 

2,598,I90 
I12,8I9 
249,070 

8,396 

213,316 

(174,05I) 
(124,456) 

(3,45I) 

(26,5.04) 
744,695 
395,927 
183,865 

1,667,297 
86,892 

5,932,005 

(1 ,537 ,886) 
(I ,227,844) 
(I ,023,455) 

(190,697) 
(1,491,723) 

(822,084) 
(6,293,689) 

(361,684) 

(36I,684) 

12I,344 
(483,028) 

(36I,684) 

0.152 Fils 

The notes set out on pages 9 to 63 form an integral part of these consolidated financial statements. 
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Arzan Financial dr~up for Fina,ncing and Investment KPSC 
(Formerly known'~s International Finance Company KPSC) and subsidiaries 
Kuwait ,. ~ , 

Consolidated statenfe~t:of~~mprehensive income 
For the year ended 31 December 2013 

Profit I (loss) for the year 

Other comprehensive income items: 

Items that may be reclassified subsequently to consolidated statement 
ofincome: · 

Exchange differences arising on translation of foreign operations 
Available for sale investments: 
- Net change in fair value 
- Transferred to consolidated statement of income on sale 
- Transferred to consolidated statement of income on impairment 

Total other comprehensive income for the year 
Total comprehensive income for the year 

Attributable to: 
Owners ofthe parent company 
Non-controlling interests 

Year ended 
31 December 

2013 
KD 

2,267,304 

501,054 

4,525,597 
(406,467) 

1,831,234 
6,451,328 
8,718,632 

8,515,175 
203,457 

8,718,632 

' .... ,. 
. •:,-.. '. 

Year ended 
31 December 

2012 
KD 

(361,684) 

53,562 

(461,419) 
276,305 

822,084 
690,5_32 
328,848 

808,744 
(479,896) 

328,848 

The notes set out on pages 9 to 63 form an integral part of these consolidated financial statements. 
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Arzan Fi~ancial Group for Financing and Investment KPSC 
(formerly International Finance Company KPSC) and subsidiaries 
Kuwait 

Consolidated statement of changes in equity 
For the year ended 31 December 2013 

EquityattributaiJ!e to the owners of the Pl!rent company 

~ 
f'· 
~· 

Balance at 1 January 2013 
(a·s previously reported) 
Non:controlling interests 

... arising on a business 
.. , . ,::combinations (note 4.2) 

Balance at 1 January 2013 
r ,, :(as restated) 

: · 'Proflt/(loss) for the year 
· i, : :~other·comprehenstve 

· " ·~income items: · 
. i. • '·:Exchange differences arising 

. 'oh translaiion of foreign 
. '• operations 

·Available for sale 
investments: 
-Net change in fair value 
-Transferred to consolidated 
statement of income on sale 
-Transferred to consolidated 
statement of income on 
impairment 
Total comprehensive income 
for the year 
Purchase of treasury shares 
Sale of treasury shares 
Transactions with owners 
Non-controlling interests 
arising on a business 
combinations (note 4.2) 
Balance at 31 December 

Share 
capital 

KD 

80,288,257 

80,288,257 

2013 80,288,257 

Share 
premium 

KD 

32,950,027 

32,950,027 

32,950,027 

Treasury 
shares 

KD 

(931,786) 

(931,786) 

(461,694) 
796,339 
334,645 

(597,141) 

Legal 
reserve 

KD 

7,087,901 

7,087,901 

(110,759) 
(110,759) 

6,977,142 

Voluntary 
reserve 

KD 

151,824 

151,824 

(151,824) 
(151,824) 

Foreign 
currency 
translation 
reserve 

KD 

(189,578) 

(189,578) 

193,296 

193,296 

3,718 

Fair value 
reserve 

KD 

8,615,587 

8,615,587 

4,525,507 

(406,467) 

1,831,234 

5,950,274 

14,565,861 

Accumulated 
losses 
KD 

(15,081,492) . 

(15,081,492) 

2,371,605 

2,371,605 

(12, 709,887) 

The notes set out on pages 9 to 63 form an integral part of these consolidated financial statements. 

.j. . 

I •',1 
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.··_· ~ 
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Sub-total 
I(j) 

I 12,890,740 

112,890,740 

2,371,605 

193,296 

4,525,507 

(406,467) 

1,831,234 

8,515,175 
(461,694) 

533,756 
72,062 

121,477,977 

Non­
controlling 
interests 

I<".D 

612,786 

2,572,270 

3,185,056 

(104,301) 

307,758 

203,457 

13,231,116 

16,619,629 

Total 
KD 

113,503,526 

2,572,270 ·.·.--·,-, .. -.,· 

i 16;075,796 ·. 

2;267)64 · .. ''<> 
. . . 

-··. 
501,054 

4,525,507 

(406,467) 

1,831,234 

8,718,632 
(461,694) 

533,756 
72,062 

13,231,116 

138,097,606 

. ' ; ~ 
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Arzan Financial Group for Financing and Investment KPSC 
(formerly International Finance Company KPSC) and subsidiaries 
Kuwait 

Consolidated statement of changes in equity 
For the year ended 31 December 2013 

q r 
[:'-f 

<tl . ,. " '"-JI . f'·'-"''1-J-I · :11 I 
\~.r k~'f·l· ·,· ~t.' "i-·k . " 

Equity attributable to the owners of the parent company 

L 

t: 
~-
> 

Balance at 1 January 2012 (as 
previously reported) 
Prior year adjustment 
Balance at 1 January 2012 (as 
restated) 

ProfitJ(loss) for the year 
Other comprehensive income 
items: 
Exchange differences arising on 
translation of foreign operations 
Available for sale investments: 
-Net change in fair value 
- Transf~tred to consolidated 
statement of income on sale 
- Transferred to consolidated 
statement of income on 
impairment 
Total comprehensive 
income/(loss) for the year 
Purchase of treasury shares 
Sale of treasury shares 
Transactions with owners 
Restatement adjustment in an 
associate's equity (note 12) 
Balance at 31 December 2012 (as 
previously reported) 
Non-controlling interests arising 
on a business combinations (note 
4.2) 
Balance at 31 December 2012 
(as restated) 

::{ 
~ ' :L . " 

'.'· 

Share 
capital 

KD 

80,288,257 

80,288,257 

80,288,257 

80,288,257 

Share 
premium 

KD 

32,950,027 

32,950,027 

32,950,027 

32,950,027 

Treasury 
shares 

KD 

(l ,432,303) 

(1,432,303) 

(538,714) 
1,039,231 

500,517 

(931,786) 

(931,786) 

Treasury 
shares 
reserve 

KD 

157,713 

157,713 

(157,713) 
(157,713) 

Legal 
reserve 

KD 

7,087,901 

7,087,901 

7,087,901 

7,087,901 

Voluntary 
reserve 
I<D 

501,900 

501,900 

(350,076) 
(350,076) 

151,824 

151,824 

Foreign 
currency 

translation 
reserve 

KD 

(240,008) 

(240,008) 

50,430 

50,430 

(189,578) 

(189,578) 

Fair value 
reserve 

KD 

7,978,617 

7,978,617 

(461,419) 

276,305 

822,084 

636,970 

8,615,587 

8,615,587 

The notes set out on pages 9 to 63 form an integral part of these consolidated financial statements. 
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Accumulated 
losses 
KD 

(15,003,587) 
(98,709) 

( 15, 102,296) 

I2I,344 

121,344 

(100,540) 

(I5,08I,492) 

(15,081,492) 

q' r --q r 11 r o)J t ~~~ i 
~ r,..._~ ,.,-,A \~:':!§ •-$j 

Sub-total 
KD 

112,288,517 
(98,709) 

112,189,808 

121,344 

50,430 

(461,419) 

276,305 

822,084 

808,744 
(538,714) 

53I,442 
(7,272) 

(100,540) 

112,890,740 

1 I2,890,740 

Non­
controlling 

interests 
1<D 

1,092,682 

1,092,682 

(483,028) 

3,132 

Total 
KD 

I 13,381,199 
(98,709) 

I 13,282,490 

(361,684) 

53,562 

I ~" (~61,419) 
; ; ~ .. 

, .. ;j:/276,305 . .: 

. ·-·~ . ·~ . 

- ~'·:- ~;, 822,084 . 

-.(-47-9-,s9..,..6..,...,~'~{\~(s~~~l'~~;: 

(100;540) 

612,786 113,503,526 

2,572,'2.70 2,572,270 

3,185,056 I 16,075,796 

-
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Arzan I?inancial Group for Financing and In~estmentJ{i>SC- ,-> ..•. 
(form~rly International Finance CompanyXPSC) and subsidia_~i(!s .· c. ' 

Kuwait ·· · - - !;·>,'', 

Consolidated statement of c~sh'fl~~s 
For the year ended 31 December:-20'13-;2"' ~-· <- ··:'_ 

OPERA TJNG ACTIVITIES 
Pro lit I (loss) for the year 
Adjustments for:. 

Interest income 
Dividend income 
Impairment of available sale investme'nts 
(Gain)/ loss on sale of available for sale investments 
Gain on sale of investment in an associate 
Share of resu Its of associates 
(Gain)/ loss on sale of properties held for trading 
Reversal of provision for instalment credit debtors - net 
Provision for doubtful debts 
Finance costs 
Depreciation 
Gain on sale of property and equipment 
Provision for staff indemnity 

Changes in operating assets and liabilities: 
Instalment credit debtors 
Investments at fair value through statement of income 
Accounts receivable and other assets 
Due from I to related parties 
Accounts payable and other liabilities 
Cash from ope.-ations 
Staff indemnity paid 
Net cash genm·ated from operating activities 

INVESTING ACTIVITIES 
Purchase of property and equipment 
Proceeds from sale of property and equipment 
Purchase of held to maturity investment 
Purchase of properties held for trading 
Proceeds from sale of properties held for trading 
Purchase of available for sale investments 
Proceeds from sale of available for sale investments 
Purchase of investment in associates 
Proceeds from sale of investment in an associate 
Dividend income received 
Dividend income from associate 
Interest income received 
Net cash used in investing activities 

FINANCING ACTIVITIES 
Net change in due to banks -
Receipt/ (repayment) of term loans 
Repayment of murabaha payable 
Purchase of treasury shares 
Sale of treasury shares 
Non-controlling interests arising on a business combination 

Finance costs paid 
Net cash from/( used in) financing activities 
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents 
Translation of foreign operation 

Notes 

24 
11 

12 
12 

14 

10 

11 

12 

7 
9 

12 

Cash and cash equivalents at beginning ofthe year 
Cash and cash equivalents at end of th~ year -.- 6 

.::: :'. ,··. -··..;"". 

Year ended 
31 December 

2013 
KD 

2,267,304 

(410,626) 
(1 ,323,617) 

1,831,234 
(1,338,985) 

(184,625) 
(1,227,119) 

(183,736) 
(2,375,505) 

603,019 
1,499,226 

176,762 

190,519 
(476,149) 

16,041,736 
(494, 140) 

12,739 
(1,257,605) 

. 924,603 
14,751,184 

(106,317) 
14,644,867 

(63,784) 

(1,263,553) 
2,863,411 

(22,593,232) 
4,279,553 

(22,516,609) 
1,316;501 
1,323,617 

717,601 
410,626 

(3 5,525,869) 

(144,625) 
14,293,200 
(1,600,000) 

(461,694) 
533,756 

13,231,116 
(1,499,226) 
24,352,527 

3,471,525 
83,758 

8,506,863 
12,062,146 

(Restated) 
Year ended 

31 December 
2012 
KD 

(361,684) 

(249,070) 
(744,695) 

822,084 
174,051 

3,451 
124,456 

(1 ,667 ,297) 
1,491,723 
1,023,455 

190,697 
(16) 

219,429 
1,026,584 

16,314,937 
(256,469) 

(I ,097,259) 
641,345 

(977,375} 
15,651,763 

(994,005) 
14,657,758 

(65,120) 
1,612 

(283,050) 
(1,748,298) 

1,638,452 
( 4,819,436) 

2,309,161 
(5,345,986) 

744,695 

249,070 
(7 ,318,900} 

(2,091,031) 
(2,545,082) 
(1,600,000) 

(538,714) 
531,442 

2,572,270 
(1 ,023,455} 
( 4,694,570} 

2,644,288 
53,558 

5,809,017 
8,506,863 

' ~\£~'.:_--'·.·. _._ 
The notes set out on J)age$ 9 t_() 63,_foi§failintegral part of these consolidated financial statements. 
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Arzan Financial Group for Financing and 'iiivestmcnt~SC 
(formerly International Finance Companyi{:Psq and.subsidiaries · 
Kuwait · · -· · · . _.. _ -·-._ _ . ' - ._ 

'.•. ,:.,:;,·· 

Notes to the consolidated financial s't~tem.et~ts·: ' -· . 
For the year ended 31 December 2013 . . . · " 

1. Incorporation and activifies ; '~ '. · .. >t· ... ,, .... _.. ;,_ • 

International Finance Company ~-- KS~ (Closed) (the "parent company") was incorporated in 
Kuwait on 15 April 1980 in accordance with the Commercial Companies Law under the name of 
International Transport Equipment Company - KSC (Closed). On 14 December 1996, an 
extraordinary general assembly resolved to change the name of the parent company to 
Inten~ational Murabaha Company - KSC (Closed). Later, on 24 April 2002, an extraordinary 
general assembly resolved to change the name of the parent company to International Finance 
Company- KSC (Closed) and to expand its permitted activities. 

The extraordinary general assembly held on 24 July 2013 approved to change the name of the 
parent company from International Finance Company - KSCC to Arzan Financial Group for 
Financing and Investment - KPSC which has been registered in the commercial register under 
No. 29629 on 11 November 2013. 

The parent company is listed on the Kuwait Stock Exchange and is governed under the directives 
of the Central Bank ofKuwait and the Capital Markets Authority. 

The group comprises the parent company and its subsidiaries (together referred as "the group"). 
The details of the subsidiaries are noted in Note 4.2. 

The principal activities ofthe group are as follows; 

1- Trading through transportation and related heavy equipment; 

2- Financing the purchases of capital commodities and durable and non-durable goods; 

3- Leasing the capital goods and the durable goods; 

4- Granting short and medium term loans for of individuals and legal entities; 

5- Real estate investment transactions to manage and develop residential land, and constructing 
of commercial and residential units and complexes in order to sell them in cash or 
instalments or rent them; 

6- Managing all types and forms of financial portfolios, investing and developing of funds by 
utilising them locally and globally for the company or on behalf of its customers including 
required lending and borrowing operations; 

7- Mediation in lendihg, borrowing, brokerage and guarantees transactions for a commission or 
fee; 

8- Financing and brokerage in the international and local trading; 

9- Managing and establishing mutual funds in accordance with the law and after obtaining the 
approval of the competent authorities;. 

1 0- Brokerage in international investment instruments and securities; 

11- Investment in real estate, industrial, agricultural and other economic sectors, either directly -
or by participating in the establishment of specialised entities or buying the shares of the$e · · 
entities; ...,...__ 
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Arzan Financial Group for Financing and Investlnent 1\PSC 
(formerly International Finance Comp~nyKPSC) and. subsidiaries 
Kuwait · · . · ..... · · · · · · 

.. · ··,' . . . , 
·.·. '·' 

Notes to the consolidated financial statements · 
For the year ended 3 i December 2013 . .. . . 

1. Incorporation and activities (Con'tinued) 

; •... 

12- Buying and selling of foreign cmrrencie's and trading 111 precious metals for the parent 
company only; 

13- Conducting researches and studies related to real estate projects as well as those relating to 
tl:e utilisation of funds for the company or for others; 

14- Trading in securities such as shares, investment certificates and the like, 

15- The parent company may have interest or participate in any way with the companies 
practicing similar activities or which may assist it to achieve its objectives inside or outside 
the State of Kuwait. The company may also purchase these companies or affiliate them 
therewith. 

The Companies Law issued on 26 November 2012 by Decree Law no. 25 of 2012 (the 
"Companies Law"), cancelled the Commercial Companies Law No. ·15 of 1960. The Companies 
Law was subsequently amended on 27 March 2013 by Decree Law no. 97 of 2013 (the Decree). 
The Executive Regulations of the new amended law issued on 29 September 2013 were 
published in the official Gazette on 6 October 2013. As per atticle 3 of the executive 
regulations, the existing companies have one year from the date of publishing the executive 
regulations to comply with the new amended law and the related regulations. 

The address of the parent company's registered office is PO Box 26442, Safat 13125, State of 
Kuwait. 

The consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2013 were approved for 
issuance by the board of directors of the parent company on 16 March 2014 and are subject to the 
approval ofthe general assembly ofthe shareholders. 

2. Statement of compliance 

These consolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the International 
Financial Repotting Standards ("IFRS") promulgated by the International Accounting Standards 
Board ("IASB"), and Interpretations issued by the International Financial Reporting 
Interpretations Committee ("IFRIC") of the IASB, as modified for use by the Government of 
Kuwait for financial services institutions regulated by the Central Bank of Kuwait. These 
regulations require adoption of all IFRSs except for the IAS 39 requirement for collective 
impairment provision, which has been replaced by the Central Bank ofKuwait requirement for a 
minimum general provision of I% for cash facilities and 0.5% for non-cash facilities. These rates 
are to be applied effective from 1 January 2007 on the net increase in facilities, net of cettain 
restricted categories of collateral, during the reporting period. 

3. Changes in accounting policies 

The accounting policies adopted in the preparation of the consolidated financial statements are 
consistent with those used in previous year except for the adoption of the new and amended 
standards as follows. 
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Arzan Financial Group for Financing and Investment KPSC 
(formerly International Finance Company KPSC) and subsidiaries 
Kuwait 

Notes to the consolidated financial statements 
For the year ended 31 December 2013 

3. 

3.1 

Changes in accounting policies (Continued) 

Adoption of new IASB Standards and amendments during the period 

The group has adopted the following new and amended IFRS during the period: 

Standard or Interpretation 
IAS 1 Presentation of Financial Statements - amendment 
IAS 19 Employee Benefits 
lAS 27 Consolidated and Separate Financial Statements (Revised as IAS 
27 Separate Financial Statements) 
IAS 28 Investments in Associates (Revised as JAS 28 Investments -
Associates and Joint Ventures) 
JFRS I 0 Consolidated Financial Statements 
IFRS 12 Disclosure of Interests in Other Entities 
IFRS 13 Fair Value Measurement 
IFRS 7 Financial Instruments: Disclosures- amendments 
Annual Improvements 2009-2011 

Effective for annual 
periods beginning 

I July 20I2 
1 January 20I3 

I January 2013 

1 January 2013 
1 January 2013 
1 January 2013 
1 January 2013 
1 January 2013 
1 January 2013 

3.1.1 lAS 1 Presentation of Financial Statements- amendment 
The amendments to lAS 1 require items of other comprehensive income to be grouped into two 
categories in the other comprehensive income section: (a) items that will not be reclassified 
subsequently to profit or loss and (b) items that may be reclassified subsequently to profit or loss 
when specific conditions are met. The amendment affects presentation only and has no impact on 
the group's consolidated financial position or performance. The group has made this disclosure in 
the consolidated statement of comprehensive income. 

3.1.2 lAS 19 Employee Benefits (Revised) 
The amendments to lAS 19 change the accounting for defined benefit plans and termination 
benefits. The most significant change relates to the accounting for changes in define benefit 
obligations and plan assets. The amendments require recognition of changes in defined benefit 
obligations and fair value changes of plan assets when they occur, and hence eliminate the 
'corridor approach' permitted under the previous version of lAS 19 and accelerate the recognition 
of past service costs. The amendments require all actuarial gains and losses to be recognised 
immediately through other comprehensive income in order for the net pension asset or liability 
recognised in the consolidated statement of financial position to reflect the full value of the plan 
deficit or surplus. In case of the group, the transition to lAS 19R had no impact on the group's 
consolidated financial position or performance. 

3.1.3 lAS 27 Consolidated and Separate Financial statements - Revised as lAS 27 Separate 
Financial Statements 
The amended version of lAS 27 now only deals with the requirements for sepal·ate financial 
statements, which have been carried over largely unchanged from lAS 27 Consolidated and 
Separate Financial Statements. The standard outlines the accounting and disclosure requirements 
for 'separate financial statements', which are financial statements prepared by a parent, or an 
investor in a joint venture or associate, where those investments are accounted for either at cost or 
in accordance with lAS 39 Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement or IFRS 9 
Financial Instruments. The standard also outlines the accounting requirements for dividends and 
contains numerous disclosure requirements. The adoption of this standard has not resulted in any 
significant impact on the consolidated financial statements of the group. 
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Arzan Financial Group for· Financing and Investment KPSC 
(formerly International Finance Company KPSC) and subsidiaries 
Kuwait 

Notes to the consolidated financial statements 
For the year ended 31 December 2013 

3. Changes in accounting policies (Continued) 

. " ~--

3.1 Adoption of new IASB Standards and amendments during the period (continued) 

3.1.4 lAS 28 Investments in Associates - Revised as lAS 28 Investments in Associates and Joint 
Ventures 
As a result of the consequential amendments, IAS 28 brings investments in joint ventures into its 
scope. However, the equity accounting methodology under IAS 28 remains unchanged. 

The adoption of this amendment did not have any significant impact on the financial position or 
performance of the group. 

3.1.5 /FRS 10 Consolidated Financial Statements 
IFRS 10 replaces the parts of IAS 27 Consolidated and Separate Financial Statements that deal 
with consolidated financial statements and of SIC-12 Consolidation- Special Purpose Entities. 
Under IFRS 10, there is only one basis for consolidation, that is, control. In addition, IFRS 10 
includes a new definition of control that contains three elements: (a) power over an investee, (b) 
exposure, or rights, to variable returns from its involvement with the investee, and (c)the ability 
to use its power over the investee to affect the amount of the investor's returns. 

The group adopted IFRS 10 in the current year. The application of IFRS 10 affected the 
accounting for the group's 9.44% interest in the equity shares in Hilltop 1 UK Limited. Hilltop 1 
UK Limited was previously classified as an investment in associate and was accounted for using 
the equity method. At the date of initial application of IFRS 10 (1 January 2013), the group 
assessed that it controls Hilltop 1 UK Limited. 

Consequently, the group has consolidated the financial statements of Hilltop 1 UK Limited based 
on its 9.44% (2012: 22.18%) equity interest and accounted for the balance of 90.56% (2012: 
77.82%), as non-controlling interests, amounting to KD 96,979 (2012: KD nil). The consolidated 
statement of financial position has been restated to reflect the above reclassification with 
retrospective effect. There was no material effect on the results for the year ended 31 December 
2012, accordingly the consolidated statement of income has not beett restated. 

3.1.6 /FRS 12 Disclosure of Interests in Other Entities 
IFRS 12 is a disclosure standard and is applicable to entities that have interests in subsidiaries, 
joint arrangements, associates and/or unconsolidated structured entities. In general, the disclosure 
requirements in IFRS 12 are more extensive than those in the current standards. The adoption of 
this standard has resulted in an additional disclosure in the consolidated financial statements of 
the group (notes 4.2 and 12). 

3.1. 7 /FRS 13 Fair Value Measurement 
IFRS 13 establishes a single source of guidance for fair value measurements and disclosures 
about fair value measurements. The scope of IFRS 13 is broad and it applies for both financial 
and non-financial items for which other IFRSs require or permit fair value measurements or 
disclosures about fair value measurements except in cettain circumstances. IFRS 13 defines fair 
value, establishes a framework for measuring fair value, and requires disclosures about fair value 
measurements. The adoption of this standard has resulted in additional disclosures in. the 
consolidated financial statements of the group (note 32). 
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Arzan Financial Group for Financing and Investment KPSC 
(formerly International Finance Company KPSC) and subsidiaries 
Kuwait 

Notes to the consolidated financial statements 
For the year ended 31 December 2013 

3. Changes in accounting policies (Continued) 

3.1 Adoption of new IASB Standards and amendments during the period (continued) 

3.1.8 !FRS 7 Financial Instruments: Disclosures- Amendments 
These amendments require an entity to disclose information about rights to set-off and related 
arrangements (e.g., collateral agreements). The disclosures would provide users with information 
that is useful in evaluating the effect of netting arrangements on an entity's financial position. The 
new disclosures are required for all recognised financial instruments that are set off in accordance 
with IAS 32 Financial Instruments: Presentation. The disclosures also apply to recognised 
financial instruments that are subject to an enforceable master netting arrangement or similar 
agreement, irrespective of whether they are set off in accordance with JAS 32. 

The adoption of the above amendments did not have any significant impact on the financial 
position or performance ofthe group. 

3.1.9 Annual Improvements 2009-2011 
The Annual Improvements 2009-2011 (the Annual Improvements) made several minor 
amendments to a number of IFRSs. The amendments relevant to the group are summarised 
below: 

Clarification of the requirements for opening statement of financial position: 
• clarifies that the appropriate date for the opening statement of financial position is the 

beginning of the preceding period (related notes are no longer required to be presented) 
• addresses comparative requirements for the opening statement of financial position when an 

entity changes accounting policies or makes retrospective restatements or reclassifications, in 
accordance with IAS 8. 

Clarification of the requirements for comparative information provided beyond minimum 
requirements: 
• clarifies that additional financial statement information need not be presented in the form of a 

complete set of financial statements for periods beyond the minimum requirements 
• requires that any additional information presented should be presented in accordance with 

TFRS and the entity should present comparative information in the related notes for that 
additional information. 

Tax effect of distribution to holders of equity instruments: 
• addresses a perceived inconsistency between IAS 12 'Income Taxes' (lAS 12) and lAS 32 

'Financial Instruments: Presentation' (IAS 32) with regards to recognising the consequences 
of income tax relating to distributions to holders of an equity instrument and to transaction 
costs of an equity transaction 

• clarifies that the intention of lAS 32 is to follow the requirements in lAS 12 for accounting for 
income tax relating to distributions to holders of an equity instrument and to transaction costs 
of an equity transaction. 

Segment information for total assets and liabilities: 
• clarifies that the total assets and liabilities for a particular repOiiable segment are required to 

be disclosed if, and only if: (i) a measure of total assets or of total liabilities (or both) is 
regularly provided to the chief operating decision maker; (ii) there has been a material change 
from those measures disclosed in the last annual financial statements for that reportable 
segment. 

The adoption of the above amendments did not have any significant impact on the financial 
position or performance of the group. 
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Arzan Financial Group for Financing and Investment KPSC 
(formedy Intemational Finance Company KPSC) and subsidiaries 
Kuwait 

Notes to the consolidated financial statements 
For the year ended 31 December 2013 

3. Changes in accounting policies (Continued) 

3.2 IASB Standards issued but not yet effective 

At the date of authorisation of these consolidated financial statements, cetiain new standards, 
amendments and interpretations to existing standards have been published by the IASB but are 
not yet effective, and have not been adopted early by the group. 

Management anticipates that all of the relevant pronouncements will be adopted in the group's 
accounting policies for the first period beginning after the effective date of the pronouncement. 
Management is yet to determine impact of these pronouncements in the consolidated financial 
statements. Information on new standards, amendments and interpretations that are expected to be 
relevant to the group's financial statements is provided below. 

3.2.1 lAS 32 Financial Instruments: Presentation- Amendments 
The amendments to IAS 32 clarifY existing application issues relating to the offset of financial 
assets and financial liabilities requirements. Specifically, the amendments clarifY the meaning of 
'currently has a legally enforceable right of set-off'. The amendments to IFRS 7 require entities 
to disclose information about rights of offset and related arrangements. 

The amendments to lAS 32 are not effective until annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 
2014, with retrospective application required. 

These amendments are effective for annual periods beginning on or after I January 2014 provide 
an exception to the consolidation requirement for entities that meet the definition of an 
investment entity under IFRS 10. The exception to consolidation requires investment entities to 
account for subsidiaries at fair value through profit or loss. It is not expected that this amendment 
would be relevant to the group, since none of the entities in the group would qualify to be an 
investment entity under IFRS 10. 

3.2.2 /FRS 9 'Financial instruments' (Revised effective date open until all other outstanding phases 
of /FRS 9 have been finalised) 
The standard addresses the classification, measurement and recognition of financial assets and 
financial liabilities. IFRS 9 was issued in November 2009 and amended in October 20 I 0 and 
November 2013. It replaces the patis ofiAS 39 that relate to the classification and measurement 
of financial instruments. IFRS 9 requires financial assets to be classified into two measurement 
categories: those measured as at fair value and those measured at amortised cost. The 
determination is made at initial recognition. The classification depends on the entity's business 
model for managing its financial instruments and the contractual cash flow characteristics of the 
instrument. For financial liabilities, the standard retains most of the IAS 39 requirements. The 
main change is that, in cases where the fair value option is taken for financial liabilities, the pati 
of a fair value change due to an entity's own credit risk is recorded in other comprehensive 
income rather than the income statement, unless this creates an accounting mismatch. 

To date, the chapters dealing with recognition, classification, measurement and derecognition of 
financial assets and liabilities, and hedge accounting have been issued. Chapter dealing with 
impairment methodology is still being developed. The group's management have yet to assess the 
impact ofthis new standard on the group's consolidated financial statements. Management does 
not expect to implement IFRS 9 until it has been completed and its overall impact can be 
assessed. 
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Arzan Financial Group for Financing and Investment KPSC 
(formerly International Finance Company KPSC) and subsidiaries 
Kuwait 

Notes to the consolidated financial statements 
For the year ended 31 December 2013 

3. Changes in accounting policies (Continued) 

3.2 IASB Standards issued but not yet effective (continued) 

3.2.3 lAS 36, 'Impairment of assets' 011 recoverable amount disclosures' 
IFRS 13 amended IAS 36 paragraph 134 (c) to include the disclosure of the recoverable amount 
for CGUs with significant carrying amounts of goodwill. However the IASB indicated that this 
was not their intention and published an amendment to lAS 36 in May 2013 to remove the 
disclosure requirements. Disclosure of the recoverable amount will still be required for CGUs for 
which there has been an impairment loss during the period. It is not expected that this amendment 
would be relevant to the group. The amendment is effective for annual periods starting on or after 
1 January 2014, early adoption is permitted. 

3.2.4 IFRIC 21 Levies 
IFRIC 21 identifies the obligating event for the recognition of a liability as the activity that 
triggers the payment of the levy in accordance with the relevant legislation. The Interpretation 
clarifies that 'economic compulsion' and the going concern principle do not create or imply that 
an obligating event has occurred. IFRIC 21 provides the following guidance on recognition of a 
liability to pay levies, a) the liability is recognised progressively if the obligating event occurs 
over a period of time, and b) if an obligation is triggered on reaching a minimum threshold, the 
liability is recognised when that minimum threshold is reached. IFRIC 21 is effective for annual 
periods beginning on or after 1 January 2014. 

3.2.5 Annual Improvements to IFRSs 2010-2012 Cycle (Effective date 1 July 2014, with earlier· 
application permitted): 

(i) Amendments to !FRS 2-the definitions of key terms including market, performance, service, 
and vesting conditions are now clearly separated. 

(ii) Amendments to !FRS 3-Contingent consideration that does not meet the definition of an equity 
instrument is subsequently measured at each reporting date fair value, with changes recognised in 
profit or loss. 

(iii) Amendments to !FRS 8-Disclosures are required regarding judgements made by management 
in aggregating operating segments (i.e. description, economic indicators). 

A reconciliation of reportable segments' assets to total entity assets is required ifthis is regularly 
provided to the chief operating decision maker. 

(iv) Amendments to !FRS 13- the addition to the Basis for Conclusions confirms the existing 
measurement treatment of short-term receivables and payables. 

(1~ Amendments to !AS 16 and !AS 38- When items are revalued, the gross carrying amount is 
adjusted on a consistent basis to the revaluation of the net carrying amount. 

(vi) Amendments to !AS 24- Entities that provide key management personnel services to a 
reporting entity, or the reporting entity's parent, are considered to be related parties of the 
repmting entity. 

3.2.6 Annual Impr·ovements to IFRSs 2011-2013 Cycle (Effective date 1 July 2014, with earlier· 
application permitted): 

(i) Amendments to !FRS 1-the amendment to the Basis for Conclusions clarifies that an entity 
preparing its IFRS financial statements in accordance with IFRS 1 is able to use both: 

- IFRSs that are currently effective 

- IFRSs that have been issued but are not yet effective, that permit early adoption. 

The same versio'l1"'of each IFRS must be applied to all periods presented. 
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Notes to the consolidated'final~cialstatements 
For the year ended 31 December 2013 

3. Changes in accounting policies (Continued) 

3.2 IASB Standards issued but not yet effective (continued) 

3.2.6 Annual Improvements to IFRSs 2011-2013 Cycle (Effective date 1 July 2014, with earlier 
application per·mitted): (continued) 

- (ii) A1i1endments to !FRS 3- IFRS 3 is not applied to the formation of a joint arrangement in the 
financial statements of the joint arrangement itself. 

(iii) Amendments to !FRS 13- the scope of the portfolio exemption (IFRS 13.52) includes all 
items that have offsetting positions in market and/or counterparty credit risk that are recognised 
and measured in accordance with lAS 39/IFRS 9, irrespective of whether they meet the definition 
of a financial asset/liability. -

(iv) Amendments to lAS 40- the amendment emphasises that whether the acquisition of an 
investment property is a business combination requires judgement of the specific requirements of 
!FRS 3, independently from the requirements of lAS 40, including whether the investment 
property is owner occupied. 

4. Significant accounting policies 

The significant accounting policies adopted in the preparation of these consolidated financial 
statements are set out below. 

4.1 Basis of preparation 

These consolidated financial statements are presented in Kuwaiti Dinars ("KD") which is the 
functional currency of the parent company and are prepared under the historical cost convention, 
except for certain investments at fair value through statement of income and available for sale 
investments that are measured at fair value. 

The group has elected to present the "statement of comprehensive iiicome" in two statements: the 
"statement of income" and "statement of comprehensive income". 

4.2 Basis of consolidation 

Subsidiaries 
The consolidated financial statements incorporate the financial statements of the parent company 
and entities (including special purpose entities) controlled by the parent company (its 
subsidiaries) as at 31 December 2013. Where the parent company has control over an in vestee, it 
is classified as a subsidiary. The group controls an investee if all three of the following elements 
are present: power over the investee, exposure to variable returns from the investee, and the 
ability of the investor to use its power to affect those variable returns. Control is reassessed 
whenever facts and circumstances indicate that there may be a change in any of these elements of 
control. 

De-facto control exists in situations where the parent company has the practical ability to djrect 
the relevant activities of the investee without holding the majority of the voting rights. In 
determining whether de-facto control exists the parent company considers all relevant facts and 
circumstances, including: · 
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Arzan Financial G1·oup for Financing and Investment KPSC 
(formerly International Finance Com)>any KPSC) and subsidiaries 
Kuwait 

Notes to the consolidated financial statemen~ts 
For the year ended 31 December 2013 

4. Significant accounting policies (Continued) 

4.2 Basis of consolidation (continued) 

- The size of the parent company's voting rights relative to both the size and dispersion of other 
pmiies who hold voting rights 
Substantive potential voting rights held by the parent company and by other parties 

- Other contractual arrangements 
- Historic patterns in voting attendance. 

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the results of business combinations usit1g the 
acquisition method. In the consolidated statement of financial position, the acquiree's identifiable 
assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities are initially recognised at their fair values at the 
acquisition date. The results of acquired operations are included in the consolidated statement of 
comprehensive income ft~om the date on which control is obtained. They are deconsolidated from 
the date on which control ceases. 

Profit or loss and each component of other comprehensive income (OCI) are attributed to the 
equity holders of the parent of the group and to the non-controlling interests, even if this results in 
the non-controlling interests having a deficit balance. When necessary, adjustments are made to 
the financial statements of subsidiaries to bring their accounting policies into line with the 

. group's accounting policies. The consolidated financial statements present the results of the 
parent company and its subsidiaries as if they are formed as a single entity. All intra-group assets 
and liabilities, equity, income, expenses and cash flows relating to transactions between members 
ofthe group are eliminated in full on consolidation. 

A change in the ownership interest of a subsidiary, without a loss of control, is accounted for as 
an equity transaction. If the group loses control over a subsidiary, it: 
• Derecognises the assets (including goodwill) and liabilities of the subsidiary; 
• Derecognises the carrying amount of any non-controlling interest~; 
• Derecognises the cumulative translation differences recorded in equity; 
• Recognises the fair value of the consideration received; 
• Recognises the fair value of any investment retained; 
• Recognises any surplus or deficit in profit or loss; 
• Reclassifies the parent's share of components previously recognised in OCI to profit or loss 

or retained earnings, as appropriate, as would be required if the group had directly disposed of 
the related assets or liabilities. 
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements 
For the year ended 31 December 2013 

4. 

4.2 

4.2.a 

Significant accounting policies (Continued) 

Basis of consolidation (continued) 

Composition of the group 

;; 
F-' Set out below are details of subsidiaries held directly by the group: 

; ._,. 

Company name 

Al-Addan Real Estate Co.- W.L.L 

Al-Addan International for Collection Co. - W.L.L 

Kuwait Invest Real Estate Co.- W.L.L 

International Finance Company- SAL 

IF A Securities Brokerage Co.- SAE 

International Financial Advisers Company- W.L.L 

Saudi Invest Real Estate Co. - W.L.L 

Lot 67 Zimbali South Africa Investments (Pty) Ltd 

Arzan Wealth (DIFC) Co. Limited 
Arzan VC forProjectManagement-W.L.L 
Hilltop 1 UK Limited 

· Hilltop 2 UK Limited 
Hilltop 3 UK Limited 
Hilltop 4 UK Limited 

~- .... .\. .... 

Voting capital held 
as at 31 December 
2013 2012 --- ---
97% 

80% 

99% 

100% 

74.67% 

65.2% 

100% 

100% 

100% 
99% 

9.44% 
33.79% 
43.53% 
45.41% 

97% 

80% 

99% 

100% 

74.67% 

65.2% 

100% 

100% 

22.18% 
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Place of 
incorporation 

Kuwait 

Kuwait 

Kuwait 

Lebanon 

Egypt 

Jordan 

Saudi Arabia 

South Africa 

United Arab Emirates 
Kuwait 
United Kingdom 
United Kingdom 
United Kingdom 
United Kingdom 

r·· ;:.··· 

Principal 
activities 

Trading in all real estate 
activities. 

Reporting date 

31 December 2013 

Trading in real estate activities 31· December 2013 
and collect the money on 
behalf of other. 

Real estate services 31 December 2013 

Finance services including 
financing, management and 
brokerage. 

Brokerage services 

Brokerage services 

Real estate services 

Investments activities 

Financial advisory services 
Project management 
Real estate 
Real estate 
Real estate 
Real estate 

30 September 2013 

30 September 2013 

30 September 2013 

30 September 2013 

30 September 2013 

30 September 2013 
30 September 2013 
30 June 2013 
30 June 2013 
31 December 2013 
31 December 2013 .· 
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Arzan Financial Group for FinanCing and Investment KPSC 
(Formerly known as International Finaltce Company KPSC) and subsidiaries 
Kuwait · 

Notes to the consolidated financial statements 
For the year ended 31 December 2013 

4. Significant accounting policies (Continued) 

4.2 .Basis of consolidation (continued) 

\ 

During the year, the parent company established a new wholly owned subsidiary in the United 
Arab Emirates under the name of Arzan Wealth (DIFC) Co. Limited with a capital of USD 
1,000,000 (equivalent to KD 283,900). The subsidiary commenced operations during the year and 
is engaged in financial advisory services. 

During the year, the parent company established a new local subsidiary under the name of Arzan 
VC for Project Management -W.L.L with a capital of Kuwaiti Dinar 200,000 and it is engaged fn 
the projects and properties management. 

During the year, the group participated in the establishment of Hilltop 2 UK Limited with an 
amount ofKD 31,131 representing its 33.79% interest ownership interest iii the subsidiary. 

Also, the group participated in the establishment of Hilltop 3 UK Limited with an amount of KD 
187,489 representing 43.53% interest ownership in the subsidiary. 

' ' .. -..,·, ... _· ... 

Further, the group participated in the establishment of Hilltop 4 UK Limited with an amcnint oF­
KD 3,929,201 representing 45.41% ownership in the subsidimy. 

The group considers that it controls Hilltop 1 UK Limited, Hilltop 2 UK Limited, Hilltop .~ UK 
Limited, and Hilltop 4 UK Limited even though it owns less than 50% ownership interest. As a 
result of contractual arrangement with the other investors in these entities, ,the,group has. the~; 
majority voting rights through class "A" shares in the respective companies, and its approval is 
required for all major operational decisions. . · 

4.2.b Subsidiaries with material non-controlling interests~· 
IFA Securities Brokerage Co.- SAE, International Financial Advisors,,Company- W.L.L., Hilltop 
3 UK Limited and Hilltop 4 UK Limited, a 74.67%, 65.2%, 43.53% and 45.41% respectively 
owned subsidiaries of the group that has material non-controlling interests (NCJ) of KD 302,098, 
KD 314,119, KD 10,708,324 and KD 4,723,521 (2012: KD 302,098, KD 314,119, KD Nil and KD 
Nil) respectively. The NCI of all other subsidiaries that are not 100% owned by the group are 
considered to be immaterial. 

Summarised financial information in relation to the NCI of IF A Securities Brokerage Co. - SAE, 
International Financial Advisers Company - W.L.L., Hilltop 3 UK Limited and Hilltop 4 UK 
Limited before intra-group eliminations is presented below: 
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Arzan Financial Group for Financing and Investment KPSC 
(Formerly known as International Finance Company KPSC) and subsidiaries 

Kuwait 

Notes to the consolidated financial statements 
For the year ended 31 December 2013 

4. Significant accounting policies (Continued) 

4.2 Basis of consolidation (continued) 

4.2.bl Subsidiaries with material non-controlling interests (continued) 

Summarised statement of financial position 

IFA Securities Brokerage Co. International Financial Advisors 
SAE W.L.L. 

2013 2012 2013 2012 

KD KD KD KD 

.. ·: As at 31 December 
3,708,243 3,663,016 1,726,329 Assets 1,555,272 

Current 3,632,313 3,568)63 1,724,490 1,551,868 

Nori-Current 75,930 94,853 1,839 3,404 

Liabilities 3,031,642 3,039,251 430,767 248,469 

Current 3,031,642 3,039,251 430,767 248,469 

Non-Current - - - -

Equity 676,601 623,765 1,295,562 1,306,803 

Equity attributable to the owners 
of the parent company 505,218 -465,765 844,706 852,036 

Non-controlling interests 171,383 158,000 450,856 454,767 
676,601 623,765 1,295,562 1,306,803 

20 
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Hilltop 3 UK 
Limited 

2013 
KD 

11,473,302 
182,180 

11,291,122 

4,354,720 
133,149 

4,221,571 

7,118,582 

3,098,719 
4,019,863 
7,118,582 

2012 
KD 

---

Hilltop 4 UK~­
Limited · 

2013 2012 
KD KD 

9,125,507 
241,887 

8,883,620 

9,125,507 

4,143,893 
4,981,614 
9,125,507 

1 .. -. 
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Arzan Financial Group for Financing and Investment KPSC 
(Formerly known as International Finance Company KPSC) and subsidiaries 

Kuwait 

Notes to the consolidated financial statements 
For the year ended 31 December 2013 

4. Significant ac~;:ounting policies (Continued) 

4.2 Basis of consolidation (continued) 

4.2.b ttSubsidiaries with material non-controlling interests (continued) 
~· ' Summarised statement of income 

IFA securities Brokerage Co. SAE International Financial Advisors W.L.L. 
2013 2012 2013 2012 

KD KD KD KD 

.. , For the year ended 31 December 
··· · ?·,_Re_ve~ue . · 

;,')" : . 

·: · .'c::A:dmrnistrative· expenses 
1 i other expenses 

Operating profit /(loss) 

Finance costs 
Profifl (loss) for the year 
Total comprehensive income /(loss) for the 
year 
Attributable to: 
Owners of the parent company 
Non-controlling interests 

Summarised statement of cash flows. 

476,475 

(254,337) 
(9,050) 

213,088 

(93,307) 
119,781 

119,781 

89,440 
30,341 

119,78lc 

IFA Securities Brokerage 
Co. SAE 

. : ~ 

Cash flows from operating activities 
Cash flows from investing activities 
Cash fl~ws from fmancing activities 
Net cash inflows· 

1 

2013 
KD 

256,977 
(6,855) 

250,122 

2012 
KD 

390,828 
1,205 

392,033 

362,727 81,174 

(247,155) (91,442) 
(590,986) ., (1, 762) 
(475,414) (12,030) 

(107,962) (5,516) 
(583,376) (17,546) 

(583,376) (17,546) 

(435,607) (11,505) 
(147,769) (6,041) 
(583,ll6l (17,546) 

International Financial 
Advisors W.L.L. 

2013 2012 
KD KD 

(31;677) 
68,793 
10,239 
47,355 
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235,568 
88,665 
(2,900) 

321,333 

61,016 

(97,807) 
(918,105) 
(954,896) 

(8,439) 
(963,335) 

(963,335) 

(628,094) 
(335,241) 
(963,335) 

Hilltop3 UK 
Limited 

2013 2012 
KD KD 

Hilltop 3 UK Limited 
2013 2012 . " 

KD KD· .. 

405,928 

(11,996) 

393,932 

(552,068) 
(158,136) . 

(158,136) 

(68,837) 
(89,299) 

(158,136) 

Hilltop 4 UK 
Limited 

2013 2012 
KD KD 

) 

'!· 
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Arzan Financial Group for Financing and Investment KPSC 
(Fonnerly lmown as International Finance Company KPSC) and subsidiaries 
Kuwait 

Notes to the consolidated financial statements 
For the year ended 31 December 2013 

4. Significant accounting policies (Continued) 

4.2 Basis of consolidation (continued) 

4.2.c Interests in unstructured entities: 

4.3 

4.4 

4.5 

The group has no interests in unstructured entities 

Business combinations 

The . group applies the acquisition method in accounting for business combinations. The 
consideration transferred by the group to obtain control of a subsidiary is calculated as the sum of 
the acquisition-date fair values of assets transferred, liabilities incurred and the equity interests 
issued by the group, which includes the fair value of any asset or liability arising from a 
contingent consideration arrangement. Acquisition costs are expensed as incurred. For each 
business combination, the acquirer measures the non-controlling interests in the acquiree either at 
fair value or at the proportionate share of the acquiree's identifiable net assets. 

If the business combination is achieved in stages, the acquisition date fair value of the acquirer's 
p1'eviously held equity interest in the acquiree is remeasured to fair value atthe acquisition date 
through the consolidated statement of income. 

The group recognises identifiable assets acquired and liabilities assumed in a business 
combination regardless of whether they have been previously recognised in the acquiree's · 
financial statements prior to the acquisition. Assets acquired and liabilities assumed are generally 
measured at their acquisition-date fair values. 

When the group acquires a business, it assesses the financial assets and liabilities assumed for 
appropriate classification and designation in accordance with the contractual terms, economic 
circumstances and pe~iinent conditions as at the acquisition date. This includes the separation of · 
embedded derivatives in host contracts by the acquiree. 

Goodwill is stated after separate recognition of identifiable intangible assets. It is calculated as the 
excess of the sum .of a) fair value of consideration transferred, b) the recognised amount of any 
non controlling interest in the acquiree and c) acquisition-date fair value of any existing equity 
interest in the acquiree, over the acquisition-date fair values of identifiable net assets. If the fair 
values of identifiable net assets exceed the sum calculated above, the excess amount (i.e. gain on 
a bargain purchase) is recognised in the consolidated statement of income immediately. 

Goodwill 

Goodwill represents the future economic benefits arising from a business combination that are not 
individually identified and separately recognised. Goodwill is carried at cost less accumulated 
impairment losses. 

Revenue recognition 

Revenue is recognised to tl~e extent that it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the 
group and the revenue can be reliably measured, regardless of when payment is made. 

Revenue arises from rendering of services and is measured by reference to the fair value of 
consideration received or receivable, excluding taxes, rebates, and trade discounts. The group 
applies the revenue recognition criteria set out below to each separately identifiable component of 
revenue. 
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Arzan Financial Group for Financing and Investment KJ>SC 
(Form.erly lmown as International Firtance Company .KPSC) and subsidiaries 
Kuwatt 

Notes to the consolidated financial statements 
For the year ended 31 December 2013 

4. Significant accounting policies (Co~tinued) 

4.5 Revenue recognition (continued) 

4. 5.1 Income from instalment credit debtors 
Interest on instalment credit facilities is calculated at the time of a contract with the customer. The 
customer repays t~1e total ~mount due (including interest) by equal instalments over the period of 
the contract. The mterest IS allocated over the life of the agreement qsing the "effective interest" 
method. Interest relating to outstanding instalments is considered as deferred income and is 
included in the consolidated statement of financial position as a deduction from instalment credit 
debtors. · 

4.5.2 Commission income 
Commission income is recognised in full in the consolidated statement of income at the date of 
the contract with the customer. 

4.5.3 Interest income 
Interest income is recognised using the effective interest method. 

4. 5.4 Rental income 

4.5.5 

4.5.6 

4.6 

4.7 

Rental income is recognised on a straight~line basis over the period of the rental contracts. 

Dividend income 
Dividend income is recognised when the right to receive payment is established. 

Fee income from providing transaction services 
Fees arising for rendering specific advisory services, brokerage services, equity and debt 
placement transactions for a third party or arising from negotiating or participating in the 
negotiation of a transaction for a third party are recognised on completion of the underlying 

transaction. 

Operating expenses 

Operating expenses are recognised in consolidated statement of income upon utilisation of the 
service or at the date of their origin. 

Finance costs 

Finance costs are recognised on a time proportion basis taking into account the outstandirig 
balance of borrowing payable and applicable interest rate. 

Finance costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition and construction of an asset that 
i1ecessarily takes a substantial period of time to get ready for its intended use or sale are 
capitalised as part of the cost of that asset. Capitalisation of finance costs ceases when 
substantially all the activities necessary to prepare the asset for its intended use or sale are 
complete. Other finance costs are recognised as an expense in the period in which they are 

incurred. 
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Arzan Financial Group for Financing and Investment KPSC 
(Formerly known as International Finance Company KPSC) and subsidiaries 
Kuwait 

Notes to the consolidated financial statements 
For the year ended 31 December 2013 

4. Significant accounting policies (Continued) 

4.8 Taxation 

4.8.1 National Labour Support Ta.:~ (NLST) 

4.8.2 

4.8.3 

4.9 

4.10 

NLST is calculated in accordance with Law No. 19 of 2000 and the Minister of Finance 
Resolutions No. 24 of2006 at 2.5% of taxable profit of the group attributable to the owners of the 
parent company. As per law, income from associates and subsidiaries, cash dividends from listed 
companies which are subjected to NLST have to be deducted from the profit for the year. 

Kuwait Foundation for the Advancement of Sciences (KFAS) 

The contribution to KF AS is calculated at 1% of taxable profit of the group attributable to the 
owners of the parent company in accordance with the modified calculation based on the 
Foundation's Board of Directors' resolution, which states that income from associates and 
subsidiaries, Board of Directo!'s' remuneration, transfer to statutory reserve should be exclu.ded 
from profit for the year when determining the contribution. 

Zakat 

Contribution to Zakat is calculated at 1% of the profit of the group attributable to the shareholders 
of the parent company in accordance with the Ministry of Finance resolution No. 58/2007 
effective from 10 December 2007. 

Under the NLST and Zakat regulations, no carry forward of losses to the future years or any carry 
back to prior years is permitted. 

Segment reporting 

The group has four operating segments: instalment credit, investmen~, real estate and brokerage. 
In identifying these operating segments, management generally follows the group's service lines 
representing its main products and services. Each of these operating segments is managed 
separately as each requires different approaches and other resources. All inter-segment transfers 
are carried out at arm's length prices. 

For management purposes, the gt;oup uses the same measurement policies as those used in its 
financial statements. In addition, assets or liabilities which are not directly attributable to the 
btJsiness activities of any operating segment are not allocated to a segment. 

Investment in associates 

An associate is an entity over which the group has significant influence and that is neither a 
subsidiary nor an interest in a joint venture. Significant influence is the power to participate in the 
financial and operating policy decisions of the investee but is not control or joint control over 
those policies. 

The group's investment in associates is accounted for under the equity method of accounting, i.e. 
on the statement of financial position at cost plus post-acquisition changes in the group's share of 
the net assets of the associate, less any impairment and the consolidated statement of incoi11e 
reflects the group's share ofthe results of operations of associates. 

··-;~ 
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Arzan Financial Group for Financing and Investment KPSC 
.(Formerly lmown as International Finance Company KPSC) and subsidiaries 
Kuwait 

Notes to the consolidated financial statements 
For the year ended 31 December 2013 

4. Significant accounting policies (Continued) 

4.10 Investment in associates (continued) 

4.11 

4.11.1 

Any excess of the cost of acquisition over the group's share of the n~t fair value of the identifiable 
assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities of the associate recognised at the date of acquisition is 
recognised as goodwill. 

The goodwill is included within the carrying amount of the investment and is assessed for 
impairment as part of that investment. Any excess of the parent company's share of the net fair 
value of the identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities over the cost of acquisition, 
after reassessment, is recognised immediately in the consolidated statement of income. 

Distributions received from the associate reduce the carrying amount of the investment. 
Adjustments to the carrying amount may also be necessary for changes in the group's share in the 
associate arising from changes in the associate's equity. Changes in the group's share in 
associate's equity are recognised immediately in the consolidated statement of changes in equity. 

When the group's share of losses in an associate equals or exceeds its interest in the associate, 
including any other unsecured receivables, the group does not recognise further losses, unless it 
has incurred obligations or made payments on behalf of the associate. 

Unrealised gains on transactions with associate are eliminated to the extent of the group's share in 
the associate. Unrealised losses are also eliminated unless the transactions provide evidence of 
impairment in the asset transferred. 

An assessment for impairment of investment in associates is performed when there is an 
indication that the asset has been impaired, or that impairment losses recognised in prior years no 
longer exist. 

The associate's financial statements are prepared either to the parent company's reporting date or 
to a date not earlier than three months of the parent company's reporting date using consistent 
accounting policies. Where practicable, adjustments are made for the effect of significant 
transactions or other events that occurred between the repmti11g date of the associates and the 
parent company:s repmting date. 

Upon loss of significant influence over the associate, the group measures and recognises any 
retaining investment at its fair value. Any differences between the carrying amount of the 
associate upon loss of significant influence and the fair value of the remaining investment and 
proceeds from disposal are recognised in the consolidated statement of income. 

Financial instruments 

Recognition, initial measurement and derecognition 
Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised when the group becomes a pmty to the 
contractual provisions of the financial instrument and are measured initially at fair value adjusted 
by transactions costs, except for those carried at fair value through statement of income whicli are 
measured initially at fair value. Subsequent measurement of· financial assets and financial 
liabilities are described below. 
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Arzan Financial Group for Financing and Investment KPSC 
(Formerly known as International Finance Company KPSC) and subsidia.-ies 
Kuwait 

Notes to the consolidated financial statements 
For the year ended 31 December 2013 

4 Significant accounting policies (Continued) 

4.11 Financial instruments (continued) 

4.11.1 Recognition, initial measurement and derecognition (continued) 
A financial asset (or, where applicable a part of financial asset or part of group of similar 
financial assets) is derecognised when: 
• rights to receive cash flows from the assets have expired; 
• the group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from the asset or has assumed an 

obligation to pay the received cash flows in full without material delay to a third party 
under a 'pass through' arrangement and either 
(a) the group has transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset or 
(b) the group has neither transferred nor retained substantially all risks and rewards of 

the asset but has transferred control of the asset. 

Where the group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from an asset or has entered into a 
pass- through arrangement and has neither transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and 
rewards of the asset nor transferred control of the asset, a new asset is recognised to the extent of 
the group's continuing involvement in the asset. 

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the liability is discharged or 
cancelled or expires. When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same 
lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of an existing liability are substantially 
modified, such an exchange or modification is treated as a derecognition of the original liability 
and the recognition of a new liability, and the difference in the respective carrying amounts is 
recognised in consolidated statement of income. 

4.11.2 Classification and subsequent measurement offinancial assets 
For the purpose of subsequent measurement, financial assets are classified into the following 
categories upon initial recognition: 
• loans and receivables 
• financial assets at fair value through statement of income (FVTSI) 
• held to maturity (I-ITM) investments 
• available-for-sale (AFS) financial assets. 

All financial assets except for those at FVTSI are subject to review for impairment at least at each 
reporting date to identify whether there is any objective evidence that a financial asset or a group 
of financial assets is impaired. Different criteria to determine impairment are applied for each 
category of financial assets, which are described below. 

• Loans and receivables 
Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments 
that are not quoted in an active market. After initial recognition, these are measured at ammiised 
cost using the effective interest rate method, less provision for impairment. Discounting is 
omitted where the effect of discounting is immaterial. 

Individually significant receivables are considered for impairment when they are past due or 
when other objective evidence is received that a specific counterpatiy will default. Receivables 
that are not considered to be individually impaired are reviewed for impairment in groups, which 
are determined by reference to the industry and region of a counterparty and other shared credit 
risk characteristics. The impairment loss estimate is then based on recent historical counterpariy 
default rates for each identified group. 
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Arzan Financial Group for Financing and Investment KPSC 
(Fot·merly known as International Finance Company KPSC) and subsidiaries 
Kuwait 

Notes to the consolidated financial statements 
For the year ended 31 December 2013 

4 Significant accounting poHcies (Continued) 

4.11 Financial instruments (continued) 

4.1 J. 2 Classification and subsequent measurement of financial assets (continued) 

• 

• 

The group categorises loans and receivables into following categories: 

Cash and cash equivalents 
Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand, balances with banks and other financial 
institutions and short term deposits clue within three months net of bank overdrafts, which are 
subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value. 

Instalment credit debtors 
Instalment credit debtors are stated in the consolidated financial position at amortised cost, net of 
specific and general provisions. Specific provisions are made to reduce impaired receivables to 
their estimated recoverable amount and general provisions are made at a rate of 1% on instalment 
credit debtors for which no specific provisions were made, to provide for losses known from 
experience to exist, but not yet specifically identifiable, in accordance with the Central Bank of 
Kuwait instructions in that respect. The recoverable amounts are based on estimated future cash 
flows discounted at the original effective interest rate on a portfolio basis for groups of similar 
debtors. 

Accounts receivable and other assets 
Accounts receivable and other assets are· stated at original amount less allowance for any 
uncollectible amounts. An estimate for doubtful debts is made when collection of the full amount 
is no longer probable. Bad debts are written off as incurred 

Due from related parties 
Due from related parties are financial assets originated by the group by providing money directly 
to the borrower that have fixed or determinable payments and are not quoted in an active market. 

Financial assets at FVTSI 
Classification of investments as financial assets at FVTSI depends on how management monitors 
the performance of these investments. When they are not classified as held for trading but have 
readily available reliable fair values and the changes in fair values are reported as part of 
consolidated statement of income in the management accounts, they are as designated at FVTSI 
upon initial recognition. All derivative financial instruments fall into this category. 

Assets in this category are measured at fair value with gains or losses recognised in consolidated 
statement of income. The fair values of financial assets in this category are dete1'mined by 
reference to active market transactions or using a valuation technique where no active market 
exists. 

HTM investments 
HTM investments are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments a·nd 
fixed maturity other than loans and receivables. Investments are classified as HTM if the group 
has the intention and ability to hold them until maturity. The group currently holds convettible 
notes designated into this category. 
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Arzan Financial Group for Financing and Investment KPSC 
(Formerly known as International Finance Company KPSC) and subsidiaries 
Kuwait 

. Notes to the consolidated financial statements 
For the year ended 3 (December 2013 

4 Significant accounting policies (Continued) 

4.11 Financial instruments (continued) 

4.11.2 Classification and subsequent measurement offbumcial assets (continued) 

• 

• 

HTM investments(continued) . 
HTM investments are measured subsequently at amortised cost using the effective interest 
method. If there is objective evidence that the investment is impaired, determined by reference to 
external credit ratings, the financial asset is measured at the present value of estimated future cash 
flows. Any changes to the carrying amount of the investment, including impairment losses, are 
recognised in consolidated statement of income. 

AFS financial assets 
AFS financial assets are non-derivative financial assets that are either designated to this category 
or do not qualify for inclusion in any of the other categories of financial assets. 

Financial assets whose fair value cannot be reliably measured are carried at cost less impainnent 
losses, if any. Jinpairment charges are recognised in consolidated statement of income. All other 
AFS financial assets are measured at fair value. Gains and losses are recognised in other 
comprehensive income and reported within the fair value reserve within equity, except for 
impairment losses, and foreign exchange differences on monetary assets, which are recognised in 
statement of income. When the asset is disposed of or is determined to be impaired, the 
cumulative gain or loss recognised in other comprehensive income is reclassified from the equity 
reserve to statement of income and presented as a reclassification adjustment within other 
comprehensive income. 

The group assesses at each repmiing date whether there is objective evidence that a financial asset 
available for sale or a group of financial assets available for sale is impaired. In the case of equity 
investments classified as financial assets available for sale, objective evidence would include a 
significant or prolonged decline in the fair value of the equity investment below its cost. 
'Significant' is evaluated against the original cost of the investment and 'prolonged' against the 
period in which the fair value has been below its original cost. Where there is evidence of 
impairment, the cumulative loss is removed from other comprehensive income and recognised in 
the consolidated statement of income. 

Reversals of impairment losses are recognised in other comprehensive income, except for 
financial assets that are debt securities which are recognised in consolidated statement of income 
only if the reversal can be objectively related to an event occurring after the impairment loss was 
recognised. 

4.11.3 Classification mid subsequent measurement of financial liabilities 

• 

The group's financial liabilities include due to banks, accounts payable and other liabilities, due 
to related parties, term loans and murabaha payable. 

The subsequent measurement of financial liabilities depends on their classification as follows: 

Financial liabilities other than at fair value through income statement 
These are stated using effective interest rate method. Due to banks, accounts payable and other 
liabilities, due to related parties, term loans, murabaha payable are classified as financial 
liabilities other than at FVTSI. 
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4 Significant accounting p'blicies· (Continued) 

4.11 Financial instruments (continued) 

4.11.3 Classification and subsequent measurement offiuancialliahilities (continued) 

Term loans and due to banks 
All term loans and due to banks are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective 
interest rate method. Gains and losses are recognised in the consolidated statement of income 
when the liabilities are derecognised as well as through the effective interest rate method (EIR) 
amortisation process. 

Payables and other liabilities 
Payables and other liabilities are recognised for amounts to be paid in the future for goods or 
services received, whether billed or not. 

Murabaha payable 
Murabaha payable represents amounts payable on a deferred settlement basis for assets purchased 
under murabaha arrangements. Murabaha payable is stated at the gross amount of the payable, net 
of deferred finance cost. Deferred finance cost is expensed on a time apportionment basis taking 
into account the borrowing rate attributable and the balance outstanding. 

All the profit-related charges are included within finance costs. 

4.12 Amortised cost of financial instruments 

This is computed using the effective interest method less any allowance for impairment. The 
calculation takes into account any premium or discount on acquisition and includes transaction 
costs and fees that are an integral part of the effective interest rate. 

4.13 T.-ade and settlement date accounting 

All 'regular way' purchases and sales of financial assets are recognised on the trade date i.e. the 
date that the entity commits to purchase or sell the asset. Regular way purchases or sales are 
purchases or sales of financial assets that require delivery of assets within the time frame 
generally established by regulation or convention in the market place. 

4.14 Offsetting of financial instruments 

4.15 

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount reported in the consolidated 
statement of financial position if, and only if, there is a currently enforceable legal right to offset 
the recognised amounts and there is an ii1tention to settle on a net basis, or to realise the assets 
and settle the liabilities simultaneously. 

Fair value of financial instruments 

The fair value of financial instruments that are traded in active markets at each reporting date is 
determined by reference to quoted market prices or dealer price quotations (bid price for long 
positions and ask price for short positions), without any deduction for transaction costs. 
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements 
For the year ended 31 December 2013 

4 Significant accounting policies (Continued) 

4.15 Fair value of financial instruments (continued) 

4.16 

4.17 

For financial instruments not traded in an active market, the fair value is determined using 
appropriate valuation techniques. Such techniques may include using recent arm's length market 
transactions· reference to the curretit fair value of another instrument that is substantially the 

' same; a discounted cash flow analysis or other valuation models. 

An analysis of fair values of financial instruments and further details as to how they are measured 
are provided in note 31. 

Impairment of financial assets 

An assessment is made at each financial position date to determine whether there is objective 
evidence that a specific financial asset or a company of financial assets may be impaired. If such. 
evidence exists, any impairment loss is recognised in the consolidated statement of income. 
Impairment is determined as follows: 
i) For assets carried at fair value, impairment is the difference between cost and fair value; 
ii) For assets carried at cost, impairment is the difference between carrying value and the 

present value of future cash flows discounted at the current market rate of return for a similar 
financial asset; and 

iii) For assets carried at amortised cost, impairment is the difference between carrying amount 
and the present value of future cash flows discounted at the original effective interest rate. 

Reversal of impairment losses recognised in prior years is recorded when there is an indication 
that the impairment losses recognised for the financial asset no longer exist or have decreased and 
the decrease can be related objectively to an event occurring after the impairment was recognised. 
Except for reversal of impairment losses related to equity instruments classified as available for 
sale, all other impairment reversals are recognised in the consolida~ed statement of income to the 
extent the carrying value of the asset does not exceed its amortised cost at the reversal date. 
Impairment revetsals in respect of equity instruments classified as available for sale· are 
recognised in fair value reserve. 

Impairment testing of goodwill and non-financial assets 

For impairment assessment purposes, assets are grouped at the lowest levels for which there are 
largely independent cash inflows (cash generating units). As a result, some assets are tested 
individually for impairment and some are tested at cash-generating unit level. Goodwill is 
allocated to those cash-generating units that are expected to benefit from synergies of the related 
business combination and represent the lowest level within the group at which management 
monitors goodwill. 

Cash-generating units to which goodwill has been allocated (determined by the group's 
management as equivalent to its operating segments) are tested for impairment at least annually. 

All other individual assets or cash-generating units are tested for impairment whenever events or 
. changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount may not be recoverable. 
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(Formerly known as International Finance Company KPSC) and subsidiaries 
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Notes-to the consolidated financial statements 
For the year ended 31 December 2013 

4. Significant accounting policies (Continued) 

4.17 Impairment testing of goodwill and non-financial assets (continued) 

An impairment loss is recognised for the amount by which the asset's or cash-generating unit's 
carrying amount exceeds its recoverable amount, which is the higher of fair value less costs to sell 
and value-in-use. To determine the value-in-use, management estimates· expected future cash 
flows from each cash-generating unit and determines a suitable interest rate in order to calculate 
the present value of those cash flows. The data used for impairment testing procedures are 
directly linked to the group's latest approved budget, adjusted as necessaty to exclude the effects 
of future reorganisations and asset enhancements. Discount factors are detennined individually 
for each cash-generating unit and reflect management's assessment of respective risk profiles, 
such as market and asset-specific risks factors. · 

Impairment losses for cash-generating units reduce first the carrying amount of any goodwill 
allocated to that cash-generating unit. Any remaining impairment loss is charged pro rata to the 
other assets in the cash-generating unit. With the exception of goodwill, all assets are 
subsequently reassessed for indications that an impairment loss previously recognised may no 
longer exist. An impairment charge is reversed if the cash-generating unit's recoverable amount 
exceeds its carrying amount. 

4.18 Properties held for trading 

4.19 

Properties held for trading are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value. Costs are those 
expenses incurred in bringing each property to its present condition including identifiable finance 
cost. Net realisable value is based on estimated selling price less any further costs expected to be 
incurred on completion and disposal. 

Investment properties 

Investment propetties are propetiies held to earn rentals and/or for capital appreciation, and are 
accounted for using the cost model. I~~vestment properties are initially· measured at cost, being the 
purchase price and any directly attributable expenditure for a purchased investment property and 
cost at the date when construction or development is complete for a self constructed investment 
property. 

Subsequent to initial recognition, investment properties are stated at cost less accumulated 
depreciation and any impairment losses. Gains and losses arising from the sale of investment 
properties are included in the consolidated statement of income. 

The estimated useful life for the calculation of depreciation, excluding land, is 25 years using 
straight line method. The carrying amounts at·e reviewed at each reporting date on an individual 

. basis to assess whether they are recorded in excess of their recoverable amount. Provision for 
impairment losses, if any, are made where carrying values exceed the recoverable amount. 

Transfers are made to or from investment property only when there is a change in use. For a 
transfer from investment property to owner-occupied property, the deemed cost for subsequent 
accounting is the fair value at the date of change in use. If owner-occupied property becomes. an 
investment property, the group accounts for such property in accordance with the policy stated 
under propetiy and equipment up to the date of change in use. · 
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Arzan F'inancial Group for Financing and Investment KPSC 
(Formerly known as International Finance Company KPSC) and subsidiaries 
Kuwait 

Notes to the consolidated financial statements 
For the year ended 31 December 2013 

4. Significant accounting policies '(Continued) 

4.20 Property and equipment 

4.21 

Land is stated at cost less any impairment losses based upon the reports of independent 
professional valuers. 

Capital expenditure on assets in the course of construction where engineering drawings are 
complete or where the group has obtained a licence for development from the official authorities 
or has commenced construction works thereon are deferred as Building under Construction. Such 
costs are subsequently charged to the consolidated statement of income if the project is 
abandoned, or, if the project is completed, are capitalised and transferred to the appropriate 
property and equipment category, from which time depreciation is charged using the rate 
applicable to the category concerned. Interest incurred on funds specifically obtained to finance 
construction activities are capitalised using the actual interest rate incurred during construction. 

Other property and equipment assets are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation. The group 
depreciates these assets using the straight-line method at rates estimated to fully depreciate the 
cost of the property and equipment over their expected useful lives. 

The useful life and depreciation method are reviewed periodically to ensure that the method and 
period of depreciation are consistent with the expected pattern of economic benefits arising from 
items of property. In the case of leasehold property, expected useful lives are determined by 
reference to comparable owned assets or over the term of the lease, if shorter. 

Material residual value estimates and estimates of useful life are updated as required, but at least 
annually. 

When assets are sold or retired, their cost and accumulated depreciation are eliminated from the 
accounts and any gain or loss resulting from their disposal is recognised in the consolidated 
statement of income. 

Provisions, contingent assets and contingent liabilities 

Provisions are recognised when the group has a present legal or constructive obligation as a result 
of a past event, it is probable that an outflow of economic resources will be required from the 
group and amounts can be estimated reliably. Timing or amount of the outflow may still be 
uncet1ain. 

Provisions are measured at the estimated expenditure required to settle the present obligation, 
based on the most reliable evidence available at the repotiing date, including the risks and 
unce1iainties associated with the present obligation. Where there is a number of similar 
obligations, the likelihood that an outflow will be required in settlement is determined by 
considering the class of obligations as a whole. Provisions are discounted to their present values, 
where the time value of money is material. · 

Contingent assets are not recognised in the consolidated financial statements but are disclosed 
when ai1 inflow of economic benefits is probable. ' -

Contingent liabilities are not recognised in the consolidated statement of financial position, but 
are disclosed unless the possibility of an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits is 
remote. 
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements 
For the year ended 31 December 2013 

4. Significant accounting policies (Continued) 

4.22 Equity, reserves and dividend payments 

Share capital represents the nominal value of shares that have been issued and paid up. 

Share premium includes any premiums rect:~ived on issue of share capital. Any transaction costs 
associated with the issuing of shares are deducted from share premium. 

Legal and voluntary reserves comprise appropriations of current and prior period profits in 
accordance with the requirements of the Companies' Law and the parent company's articles of 
association, as amended. 

Other components of equity include the following: 
Foreign currency translation reserve - comprises foreign currency translation differences 
arising from the translation of financial statements of the group's foreign entities into KD. 
Fair value reserve - comprises valuation gains and losses relating to available fol' _sale· 
fii1ancial assets. 
Treasury shares reserve- comprises gains and losses resulting from sale of treasury shares. 

Retained earnings/Accumulated losses includes all current and prior period retained profits and 
losses. 

All transactions with owners are recorded separately within equity. 

Dividend distributions payable to equity shareholders are included in other liabilities when the 
dividends have been approved in a general meeting. 

4.23 Treasury shares 

Treasury shares consist of the parent company's own issued shares that have been reacquired by 
the group and not yet reissued or cancelled. Treasury shares are accounted for under cost method. 
Under this method, the weighted average cost of the shares reacquired is charged to a contra 
account in equity. Treasury shares are not entitled to cash dividends that the group may distribute. 
The issue of stock dividend shares increases the number of treasury shares proportionately and 
reduces the average cost per share without affecting the total cost of treasury shares. 

When the treasury shares are reissued, gains are recorded directly in "treasury shares reserve" in 
the shareholders' equity. Any realised losses are charged to the same account to the extent of the 
credit balance on that account. Any excess losses are charged to retained earnings then to the 
voluntary reserve and legal reserve. Subsequent to this, should profits arise from sale of treasury 
shares an amount is transferred to reserves and retained earnings equal to the loss previously 
charged to this account. 

4.24 Related parties transactions 

Related parties are associates, major shareholders, board of directors, executive staff, their family 
members and the companies owned by them. All related party transactions are carried out with 
the approval ofthe group's management. 
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4. Significant accounting policies '(Continued) 

4.25 End of service indemnity 

The group provides end of service benefits to its employees. The entitlement to these benefits is 
based upon the employees' final salaty and length of service, subject to the completion of a 
minimum service period in accordance with relevant labour law and the employees' contracts. The 
expected costs of these benefits are accrued over the period of employment. This liability, which is 
unfunded, represents the amount payable to each employee as a result of termination on the 
reporting date. 

With respect to its Kuwaiti national employees, the group makes contributions to the Public 
Institution for Social Security calculated as a percentage of the employees' salaries. The group's 
obligations are limited to these contributions, which are expensed when due. 

4.26 Foreign currency translation 

4.26.1 Functional and presentation currency 
The consolidated financial statements are presented in currency Kuwait Dinar (KD), which is also 
the functional currency of the parent company. Each entity in the group determines * ow1,1 . · 
functional currency and items included in the financial statements of each entity are measun:~d ·- · 
using that functional currency. 

4.26.2 Foreign currency transactions ami balances 
Foi'eign currency transactions are translated into the functional currency of the respective group 
entity, using the exchange rates prevailing at the dates of the transactions (spot exchange rate). 
Foreign exchange gains and losses resulting from the settlement of such transactions and from the 
remeasurement of monetary items denominated in foreign currency at year-end exchange rates 
are recognised in consolidated statement of income. Non-monetary items are not retranslated at 
year-end and are measured at historical cost (translated using the exchange rates at the transaction 
date), except for non-monetary items measured at fair value which are translated using the 
exchange rates at the date when fair value was determined. 

4.26.3 Foreign operations 
In the group's financial statements, all assets, liabilities and transactions of group entities with a 
functional currency other than the KD are translated into KD upon consolidation. The functional 
currency of the entities in the group has remained unchanged during the reporting period. 

On consolidation, assets and liabilities have been translated into KD at the closing rate at the 
reporting date. Goodwill and fair value adjustments arising on the acquisition of a foreign entity 
have been treated as assets and liabilities of the foreign entity and translated into KD at the 
closing rate. Income and expenses have been translated into KD at the average rate over the 
reporting period. Exchange differences are charged/credited to other comprehensive income and 
recognised in the foreign currency translation reserve in equity. Oh disposal of a foreign 
operation, the related cumulative translation differences recognised in equity are reclassified to 
the consolidated statement of income and are recognised as part of the gain or loss on disposal. 

4.27 · Fiduciary assets 

Assets held in trust or in a fiduciary capacity are not treated as assets of the group and 
accordingly are not included in these consolidated financial statements. 
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Arzan Financial Group fot· Financing and Investment KPSC 
(Formerly known as International Finance Company KPSC) and subsidiaries 
Kuwait 

Notes to the consolidated financial statements 
For the year ended 31 December 2013 

5. Significant management judgemen'ts and estimation uncertainty 

The preparation of the group's consolidated financial statements requires management to make 
judgments, estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amount of revenues, expenses, 
assets and liabilities and the disclosure of contingent liabilities, at the end of the reporting period. 
However, uncertainty about these assumptions and estimates could result in outcomes that require 
a material adjustment to the carrying amount of the asset or liability affected in future periods. 

5.1 Significant management judgments 
In the process of applying the group's accounting policies, management has made the following 
significant judgments, which have the most significant effect on the amounts recognised in the 
consolidated financial statements: 

5.1.1 Classification of financial instruments 
Judgements are made in the classification of financial instruments based on management's 
intention at acquisition. 

The group classifies financial assets as held for trading if they are acquired primarily for- the 
purpose of short term profit making. 

Classification of financial assets as at fair value through statement of income depends on how · 
management monitors the performance of these financial assets. When they are not classified as 
held for trading but have readily available fair values and the changes in fair values are reported 
as part of profit or loss in the management accounts, they are classified as designated at fair value 
through statement of income. 

Classification of assets as loans and receivables depends on the nature of the asset. If the group is 
unable to trade these financial assets due to inactive market and the intention is to receive fixed or 
determinable payments the financial asset is classified as loans and receivables. 

HTM investments are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments and 
fixed maturity other than loans and receivables. Investments are cla~sified as HTM if the group 
has the intention and ability to hold them until mat11rity. The group currently holds convertible 
notes designated into this category. 

All other financial assets are classified as available for sale. 

5.1.2 Fair values of assets and liabilities acquired 
The determination of the fair value of the assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities as a result of 
business combination requires significant judgement. 

5.1.3 Control assessment 
When determining control, management considers whether the group has the practical ability to 

·direct the relevant activities of an investee on its own to generate returns for itself. The 
assessment of relevant activities and ability to use its power to affect variable return requires 
considerable judgement. 

5.2 Estimates uncet·tainty 
Information about estimates and assumptions that have the most significant effect on recognition 
and measurement of assets, liabilities, jncome and expenses is provided below. Actual results 
may be substantially different. 
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements 
For the year ended31 December 2013 

5. Significant management judget-.'.ents and estimation uncertainty (Continued) 

5.2 Estimates uncertainty (continued) 

5.2.1 Impairment of assets with definite lives 
At the financial position date, the group's management assesses, whether there is any indication 
that assets with definite lives may be impaired. The recoverable amount of an asset is determined 
based on the "value in use" method. This method uses estimated cash flow projections over the 
estimated useful life of the asset. 

5.2.2 Impairment of associates 
After application of the equity method, the group determines whether it is necessary to recognise 
any impairment loss on the group's investment in its associated companies, at each reporting date 
based on existence of any objective evidence that the investment in the associate is impaired. If 
this is the case the group calculates the amount of iinpairment as the difference between the 
recoverable amount of the associate and its carrying value and recognises the amount in the 
consolidated statement of income. 

5.2.3 Impairment of available for sale investments 
The group treats available for sale investments as impaired when there has been a significant or 
prolonged decline in the fair value below its cost or where other objective evidence of impairnfent 
exists. The determination of what is "significant" or "prolonged" t'equires considerable judgment. 

5.2.4 Impairment of receivables 
An estimate of the collectible amount of trade accounts receivable is made when collection ofthe 
full amount is no longer probable. For individually significant amounts, this estimation is 
performed on an individual basis. Amounts which are not individually significant, but which are 
past due, are assessed collectively and a provision applied according to the length of time past 
due, based on historical recovery rates. 

5.2.5 Classification o_freal estate property 
Management decides on acquisition of a real estate property whether it should be classified as 
trading, property held for development or investment property . 

The group classifies property as trading propetiy if it is acquired principally for sale in the 
ordinary course of business. 

The group classifies property as property under development if it is acquired with the intention of 
development. 

The group classifies property as investment property if it is acquired to generate rental income or 
for capital appreciation, or for undetermined future use. 

5.2.6 Useful lives of depreciable assets 
Management reviews its estimate of the useful lives of depreciable assets at each reporting date, 
based on the expected utility of the assets. Uncetiainties in these estimates relate to technical 
obsolescence that may change the utility of certain software and equipment. 

1 

5.2. 7 Business combinations 
Management uses valuation techniques in determining the fair values of the various elements of a 
business combination. Particularly, the fair· value of contingent consideration is dependent on the 
outcome of many variables that affect future profitability. 
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5.2 Estimates uncertainty (continued) 

·.· · _
0}//§ ·.c·:-;~lr value of financial instruments 

Management applies valuation techniques to determine the fair value of financial instruments 
· ·. {where active market quotes are not available) and non-financial assets. This requires 

management to develop estimates and assumptions based on market inputs, using observable data 
.. Jhat market pa1iicipants would use in pricing the instrument. Where such data is not observable, 
· ~i~riagement uses its best estimate. Estimated fair values of financial instruments may vary from 

~:--::·'ili'eacttial prices that would be achieved in an arm's length transaction at the repmiing date (note 
32) .. 

5.2.9 Sigliificaut influence 
Significant influence exists when the size of an entity's own voting rights relative to the size and 
dispersion of other vote holders, give the entity the practical ability unilaterally to direct the 
relevant activities of the company. 

6. Cash and cash equivalents 

7. 

Cash and bank balances 
Term deposits (mature within 1-3 months) 

31 December 
2013 
KD 

8,947,736 
3,114,410 

12,062,146 

31 December 
2012 
KD 

5;718,071 
2,788,792 
8,506,863 

The term deposits carry an effective annual interest rate of 1.75% (31 December 2012: 1.75%) 

Instalment cr·edit debtors 

Gross instalment credit debtors 
Deferred income 

Specific provision for doubtful debts 
General provision for doubtful debts 

Gross instalment credit debtors are repayable as follows: 

Within one year 
After one year 

31 Decem bet; 
2013 
KD 

23,401,664 
(983,643} 

22,418,021 
(10,957,594) 

(2,006,161) 
9,454,266 

31 December· 
2013 
KD 

19,278,570 
4,123,094 

23,401,664 

31 December 
2012 
KD 

39,636,721 
(1,179,136} 
38,457,585 

(14,767,423) 
(569,665) 

23,120,497 

31 December 
2012 
KD 

30,326,338 
9,310,383 

39,636,721 

The effective annual interest rate earned on income from instalment credit ranges from 3% to 9% 
per annum (31 December 2012: 3% to 9%). ·. 
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Arzan Financial Group for Financing and Investment KPSC 
(Formerly known as International Finance Company KPSC) and subsidiaries 
Kuwait 

Notes to the consolidated financial statements 
For the year ended 31 December 2013 

7. 

8. 

Instalment credit debtors (Continued) 

The movement in the provision for instalment credit debtors is as follows: 

31 December 2013 31 December 2012 
Specific General Specific General 

provision ~rovision Total ~rovision ~··ovision Total 
KD KD KD KD KD KD 

Opening 
balance 14,767,423 569,665 15,337,088 17,063,718 957,478 18,021,196 
Foreign 
currency 
translation ,2,172 2,172 11,505 1 I ,505 
Written off (1,028,316) (1 ,028,316) 
Charge for the 
year 55,116 32,269 87,385 40,389 24,426 64,815 
Transfer (1,412,71 5) 1,412,715 
Reversal during 
the year (2,454,402) (8,488) (2,462,890) (1,319,873) (412,239) (1,732,112) 
Closing balance 10,957,594 2,006,161 12,963,755 14,767,423 569,665 15,337,088 

The provision for doubtful debts is in agreement, in all material respect, with the specific 
provision requirements of the Central Bank of Kuwait and IFRS. Fmthermore, a general 
provision of 1% on instalment credit balances, where no specific provision is made, is taken in 
accordance with the instructions of the Central Bank of Kuwait. During the year the, the group 
have trasnfered an amount ofKD I ,412, 715 (2012: KD Nil) from specific provision to the general 
provision as per the instructions of the Central Bank of Kuwait. 

Included within the gross instalment credit debtors is an amount of KD 3,148,937 (31 December 
2012: KD 13,379,803) in respect of related parties (note 30). This amount is secured by way of 
pledge of certain local and foreign shares. During the year, a loan to, a related party having a gross 
amount and accrued interest of KD 10,175,746 was settled by way of the parent company 
subscribing in the share issue of the related party. The shares received as pmt of this settlement 
have been classified as available for sale. 

The gross instalment credit debtors include an amount of KD 252,719 (31 December 2012: KD 
747,059) representing a portfolio of customer loans which have been discounted according to a 
debt factoring agreement with a local bank (note I 5). 

Investments at fair value through statement of income 

Local quoted shares 
Foreign quoted shares 
Investment in managed pottfolios 

31 December 
2013 
KD 

2,018,191 
191,595 

5,910,407 
8,120,193 

31 December 
2012 
KD 

1,289,837 
264,531 

6,071,685 
7,626,053 

An investment p01tfolio with a carrying value of KD 5,910,407 (31 December 2012: KD 
6,071 ,685) is pledged againsttenn loans and murabaha payable (notes 17 and 18). · 
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9. Accounts receivable and other assets 

Trade receivables 
Provision for doubtful debts (see below) 

Staff loans receivable 
Prepayments and refundable deposits 
Advance payment towards purchase of investments 
Other assets 

31 December 
2013 
KD 

5,537,317 
(2,094,742) 

3,442,575 
17,576 
46,882 

930,241 
579,104 

5,016,378 

·.,.:.: 

·:·· -· .. 

31 December 
2012 
KD 

3,200,663 
(1,491,723) 

1,708,940 
34,077 
44,904 

2,263,541 
977,6~6 

5,029,118 

a) This represents provisions for certain doubtful receivables by one of the group's subsidiaries. 

10. Properties held for t1·ading 

Prope11ies held for trading represent the group's share of investments m properties outside. 
Kuwait. 

The movement in the properties held for trading is as follows: 

Balance at 1 January 
Additions 
Sale 

Provision for prope11ies held for trading 
Balance at 31 December 

31 December 
2013 
KD 

3,954,715 
1,263,553 

(2,679,675) 
2,538,593 
(689,264) 
1,849,329 

The movement in the provision for pwperties held for trading is as follows: 

Balance at 1 January 
Relating to sale 
Balance at 31 December 

11. Available for sale investments 

Local quoted shares 
Local unquoted shares 
Foreign unquoted shares 
Investment in managed portfolios 
Investment funds 
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31 December 
2013 
KD 

717,993 
(28,729) 
689,264 

31 December 
2013 
KD 

39,653,408 
11,963,271 

7,086,319 
17,081,333 

189,453 
75,973,784 

31 December 
2012 
KD 

4,271,720 
1,748,298 

(2,065,303) 
3,954,715 
(717,993) 
3,236,722 

31 December 
2012 
KD 

1,020,388 
(302,395) 

717,993 

31 December 
2012 
KD 

23,267,347 
16,435,1.38 
9,328,058 
2,545,007 

220,279 
51,795,829 
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11. Available for sale investments (continued) 

The movement in the available for sale investments is as follows: 

Balance at 1 January 
Additions during the year 
Sale during the year 
Change in fair value 
Balance at 31 December 

2013 
KD 

51,795,829 
22,593,232 
(2,940,568) 

4,525,291 
75,973,784 

2012 
KD 

49,644,719 
4,819,436 

(2,206,907) 
(461,419) 

51,795,829 

The unquoted investments include investments having a carrying value of KD 2,755,147 (31 
December 2012: KD 2,823,033) stated at cost due to the unavailability of reliable sources to 
determine their fair values. Management studies and cash flow expectations for these investments 
do not indicate any impairment for these investments. 

Quoted and unquoted local shares and investments in managed portfolios with an aggregate 
carrying value ofKD 31,603,700 (31 December 2012: KD 18,507,181) are pledged against due to 
banks, term loans and murabaha payable (Note 15, 17 and 18). 

The investments in managed funds are carried at net asset value provided by the fund managers 
which represent the best estimate of fair value available for these investments. 

During the year, the group recognised an impairment loss of KD 1,831,234 (year ended 31 
December 2012: KD 822,084) on certain investments. Management has perfonned an analysis of 
the underlying investment which indicates that there is no further impairment. 

12. Investment in associates 

12.1 The details of the group's investment in associates are given below: 

Percentage of 
Country of ownershi~ 

incor~oration 31 December Activity 
2013 2012 
% % 

Offset Holding Co. KSCC Kuwait 50.00 50.00 Brokerage 
AI Wafir Marketing Services Co. KSCC Kuwait 26.95 29.77 Real estate 
AI Oula Slaughterhouse Co. KSCC Kuwait 28.89 28.89 Services 
Gulf Real Estate Co. W.L.L Kuwait 20.13 20.13 Real estate 
AI Safat House Co. W.L.L Kuwait 20.00 20.00 Real estate 
Hill Property Investment LP* United Kingdom 84.25 84.25 Real estate 
Mansell LP* United Kingdom 92.94 Real estate 
Surtees LP* United Kingdom 96.96 Real estate 
Hunt Pi·ope~iy LP* United Kingdom 97.84 Real estate 



I ~ 
~ r--'1---~ ~ - r---=; ~ ~- r-1 ~ r---q r--1 ~ -~-· ~ r--i ~ rt.J·-· rw· .- ~ rl.J. ·.~ Ph .. ~~ -

.-~ •.. ~' . \:. ~-l 1-.... k ,. ,\·:·,,; t: . ,r., - (' 1 I' t I. L L -A . ' . I . I' ..J f : ;,j . f ;~.- ., ~ ·' .. I . :J . .! . J ' J ·.~:i .) . , __ . ' .·. ' ', ~ . . ·,, : ·~ 
1 ··~ :e:t·:r, ~··' I!:;;,;,,:. ~- ··.·.~ ,~'YJ ~ ~· · ~ · ~· · ~ t"'''ii . '"'"'', ·· r·~a.·; r·~"'Ej ~: r~"'T. ·. ----:;.' .. ~ ~-,.,- ... --~ 

·~····~ · · · ,.. -... .···~---a.>''(t•;i,...~·;;·!:;\;A~i'~-;..::::_,n;.;!.:c.;.;:;:-"',;;t~: 

1 Arzan Financial Group for Financing and Investment KPSC . . . . .· . . .. , 

(Formerly known as International Finance Company KPSC) and subsidiaries 

' 
I 
!' ;-_ 

i 
-.... 

t· 

Kuwait 

Notes to the consolidated financial statements 
For the year ended 31 December 2013 

12. Investment in as§ociates (Continued) 

12.2 Summarised financial information of group's material associates are set out below: 

~-

Offset Holding Co. AI Wafir Marketing ~-

KSCC Services Co. KSCC 
2013 2012 2013 2012 
KD KD KD KD 

.Assets 32,896,511 34,791,798 35,126,220 32,516,211 
(:urrent 5,267,271 7,094,029 5,966,407 1,816,242 

· 1\j' on-current 27,629,240 27,697,769 29,159,813 30;699,969 
Liabilities 975,697 746,283 15,407,957 14,493,883 

·.Current . 580,544 361,278 5,895,960 8,722,687 
··Non-current 395,153 385,005 9,5 I-1,997 5,771,196 

31,920,814 34,045,515 19,718,263 18,022,328 
Non-controlling interests 774,244 741,771 
Net assets 31,146,570 33,303,744 19,718,263 18,022,328 

Revenue 1,932;178 914,824 5,897,427 6,977,562 
Expenses 1,641,852 1,286,318 4,166,829 6,426,137 
Net profit/ (loss) 290,326 (371,494} 1, 730,598 551,425 
Total comprehensive income/(loss) 290,326 (371,494) 1,730,598 551,425 
Group' share of results 145,163 (185,747) 188,540 164,159 

The remaining associates are considered immaterial to the group. 

L --- '. ' 

Hill Property 
Investment LP Mansell LP Surtees LP Hunt ProEer!):: LP 

2013 2012 2013 2012 2013 2012 2013 2012 

KD KD KD KD KD KD KD KD 

8,653,005 - 4,702,685 - 21,393,241 - 20,732,055 
322,169 - 204,337 - 1,262,054 - 1,078,499 

8,330,836 - 4,498,348 - 20,131,187 . - 19,653,556 
4,957,903 - 2,309,077 - 9,748,410 - 11,652,259 

251,794 - 157,479 - 299,312 - 220,234 
4,706,109 - 2,151,598 - 9,449,098 - 11,432,025 

3,695,102 - 2,393,607 - 11,644,831 

3,695,102 - 2,393,607 - 11,644,831 - 20,732,055 

440,013 - 187,lll - 1,026,321 
402,537 - 178,504 - 1,085,567 

37,476 - 8,607 - (59,246) - - •· _:.-. - '-'.j·'··-;" 

37,476 - 8,607 - (59,246) - - ~ 'i( 

31,573 - 7,999 - . (57,445) 
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12. Investment in associates (Continued) 

Reconciliation of the above summarised financial information of the associate with the carrying 
amount in the consolidated statement of financial position is given below: 

Net assets of the associate 
Group's share of net assets 
Goodwill· 
Impairment of associate 
Carrying amount 

Net assets of the associate 
Group's share of net assets 
Goodwill 
Carrying amount 

Net assets of the associate 
Group's share of net assets 
Goodwill 
Carrying amount 

Net assets of the associate 
Group's share of net assets 
GoodwilL 
Carrying amount 

Offset Holding Co. KSCC. 
31 December 

2013 
KD 

31,146,570 
15,573,285 

597,529 
(2,404,986) 
13,765,828 

31 December 
2012 
KD 

33,303,744 
16,651,872 

597,529 
(2,404,986) 
14,844,415 

AI Wafir Marl{eting 
Services Co. KSCC 

31 Deceln ber 31 December 

2013 2012 

KD KD 

19,718,263 18,022,328 
5,313,514 5,365,284 
5,592,857 6,484,421 

10,906,371 11,849,705 

Hill Property Investment LP 
31 December 31 December 

'2013 2012 
KD KD 

3,698,158 
3,115,698 

3,115,698 

Mansell LP 
31 December 31 December 

2013 2012 
KD KD 

2,393,664 
2,224,671 

.-
2,224,671 

.:.C:·•·.>i 
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. ~~tes to the consolidated financial statements 
For the year ended 31 December 2013 

12. Investment in associates (Continued) 

Net assets of the associate 
Group's share of net assets 
Goodwill 
Carrying amount 

Net assets of the associate 
Group's share of net assets 
Goodwill 
Carrying amount 

Surtees LP 
31 December 

2013 
KD 

11,645,134 
11,291,122 

11,291,122 

31 December 
2012 
KD 

Hunt Property LP 
31 December 31 December 

2013 2012 
KD KD 

9,079,742 
8,883,620 

8,883,620 

12.3 Set out below is the aggregate information for the individually immaterial associates. 

Aggregate share in associates' assets and liabilities: 
Assets 
Liabilities 

Aggregate share in associates' results: 
Revenue 
Profit for the year 
Group's share of other comprehensive income 
Group's share oftotal comprehensive income 
Dividends received from associates 

The movement in the investment in associates is as follows: 

At 1 Januuy 
Additions 
Disposal (see a below) 
Share of results 
Share of other comprehensive income 
Dividends 
Restatement adjustment in an associate 
Reduction of an associate's capital (see b below) 
Foreign currency translation of foreign associates 
At 31 Decem bet· 
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31 December 31 December 
2013 2012 
KD KD 

3,912,205 
28,092 

3,884,113 

. 306,247 
228,581 

228,581 
717,601 

31 December 
2013 
KD 

33,408,914 
22,516,609 
(1,131,876) 

1,227,119 
216 

(717,601) 

(1 ,223, 750) 
(7,992) 

54,071,423 

6,739,399 
(24,606) 

6,714,793 

87,470 
18,137 

18,137 

31 December 
. 2012 

KD 

28,166,915 
5,345,990 

(3,451) 

(1 00,540) 

33,408,914 

··, 
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12. Investment in associates (Continued) 

(a) During the year, the group partly sold its interest in Al-Wafir Marketing Services Compan~­
KSCC for KD 1 ,322,188 resulting into a profit of KD 184,625. As a result, the ownershtp 
interest in the associate reduced from 29.77% to 26.95%. 

(b) During the year one of the associates, Offset Holding Company- KSC (Holding), reduced 
its capital by way of settling the amounts due from shareholders. 

(c) All associates are unquotecl. 

13 Investment properties 

Cost 
1 January 2013 · 
31 December 2013 

Accumulated depreciation 
1 January 2013 
Charge for the year 
3I December 2013 

Net book value 
31 December 2013 
Fair value as at 31 December 2013 

Cost 
I January 20I2 (restated) 
31 December 20I2 

Accumulated depreciation 
I January 20I2 (restated) 
Charge for the year 
31 December 2012 

Net book value 
31 December 2012 
Fair value as at 31 December· 2012 

Land 
KD 

1,023,750 
1,023,750 

1,023,750 

1,071,193 

Land 
KD 

1,023,750 
1,023,750 

1,023,750 
1,436,935 

Building . Total 
KD KD 

1,484,989 2,508,739 
1,484,989 2,508,739 

499,492 499,492 
59,062 59,062 

558,554 558,554 

926,435 1,950,185 

1,553,807 2,625,000 

,Building Total 
KD KD 

1,484,989 2,508,739 
. 1,484,989 2,508,739 

440,429 440,429 
59,063 59,063 

499,492 499,492 

985,497 2,009,247 
1,383,245 2,820,I80 

Land is., no~ depreciate.d. Building is depreciated over 25 years. The fair value of the investment 
f~)~erttes ts based on mdepen~e~,tv~luations;T,he building is mot1gagecl against term loans (note 

The investment prope11y repres_ents, thepa11 of building constructed on land rented to third parties, 
and should be accpuntecl as atpnvestinent property under lAS 40. 
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14 Property and equipment 

'\1 
~-

31 December 2013: 
_ _ . . _ _ .... _ CosL- .. - __ .... -

At 1 January 
Additions 
Disposals 
At 31 December 

Accumulated 
depreciation 
At 1 January 
Charge for the year 
Relating to disposals 
At 31 December 

Net book value 
At 31 December 

Land 
KD 

-- -- -. - - -·· -- . 

1,316,250 

1,316,250 

1,316,250 

Building 
KD 

·- --- ·-·--·-·. 

2,013,562 

(10,992) 
2,002,570 

663,617 
80,650 
(2,304) 

741,963 

1,260,607 

Office 
equipment Fixtures 

and and 
computers decoration 

KD KD 

375,563 276,557 
25,687 13,773 
(9,501) (2,378) 

391,749 287,952 

343,262 252,912 
16,459 7,352 

(8,789) (2,0342 
350,932 258,230 

40,817 29,722 

45 
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Computer Work in 
software progress Total 

KD KD KD 

110,476 22,000 4,114,408 
24,324 - 63,784 

- - (22,871) 
134,800 22,000 4,155,321 

65,378 - 1,325,169 
13,239 - 117,700 

(54) - (13,1812 
78,563 - 1,429,688 

56,237 22,000 2,725,633 

~---~-----
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14. Property and equipment (Continued) 

Office 

~ 
equipment 

-~- and 
Land Building com~uters 

31 December 2012: KD KD KD 
Cost 
At 1 January, as reported 2,340,000' 3,500,241 382,830 

>Prior year adjustment (1,023, 750) (1,484,989) 
· Closing at 1 January, as restated 1,316,250 2,015,252 382,830 
Additions - - 18,617 
Disposals - (1,690) (25,884) 

·· At 31 December 1,316,250 2,013,562 375,563 

Accumulated depreciation 
At I January, as reported - 1,022,935 346,557 
Prior year adjustment - (440,429) 
At 1 January, as restated - 582,506 346,557 
Charge for the year - 81,111 22,314 
Relating to disposals - - (25,609) 
At 31 December - 663,617 343,262 

Net book value 
At 31 December 1,316,250 1,349,945 32,301 

Fixtures 
and 

decoration 
KD 

283,936 

283,936 
3,249 

(10,628) 
276,557 

243,575 

'243,575 
20,336 

(10,999) 
252,912 

23,645 

The building is depreciated over 25 years. The building is mortgaged against term loans (note 17). 

·Computer 
software 

KD 

89,222 

89,222 
21,254 

110,476 

57,505 

57,505 
7,873 

65,378 

45,098 

Work in 
~rogress 

KD 

22,000 

22,000 

22,000 

Total 
KD 

6,596,229 
(2,508, 739) 

4,087,490 
65,120 c 

(38,202) 
' 4,114,408 

1,670,572 \ 
. (440,429) 

1,230,143 
131,634 
(36,608) 

'1,325,169 

2,789,239 

The estimated useful lives of the group's office equipment, fixtures and decoration for the calculation of depreciation is 4 years, with the exception of its 
computer software which is depreciated over 3 years. Land is not depreciated. 
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18 

Due to banks 

This represents credit facilities granted to the group by a local bank in the form of overdraft 
facilities. The credit facilities carry interest rate of 4.5 % per annum (31 December 2012: 4.5% 
per annum) and payable on demand. Credit facilities are granted against pledge of available for 
sale investments (note 11). 

This balance also includes an amount of KD 23 8,222 (31 December 2012: KD 528,078) due to a 
bank against the factoring of certain instalment credit debtors (note 7). 

Accounts payable and other liabilities 

Trade payables 
Other payables 
Accrued interest 
Provision for staff leaves 
KF AS payable 
NLST payable 
Dtie to shareholders 

Term loans 

31 December 
2013 
KD 

1,043,987 
2,901,670 

186,849 
108,668 
296,535 

2,730,308 
224,113 

7,492,130 

31 December 
2012 
KD 

1,173,878 
1,910;358 

221,622 
88,024 

296,535 
2,651,634 
. 225,476 

6,567,527 

Term loans are repayable in different periods and bear interest ranging from 4.5% to 5% (31 
December 2012: annual rate of 5.5%). 

Loans are repayable as follows: 

Within one year 
After one year 

31 December· 
2013 
KD 

11,190,000 
4,810,000 

16,000,000 

31 December 
2012 
KD 

1,706,800 

1,706,800 

During the year, the group had undertaken two new term loans amounting to KD 16,000,000 from 
local financial institutions. These term loans mature on 30 October 2014 and 15 May 2017 
respectively. 

Loans are all denominated in Kuwaiti Dinars and are secured by the assignment of instalment 
credit contracts and pledge of investments at fair value through statement of income, available for 
sale investments, investment propetiies and property and equipment (notes 8, 11, 13 and 14). 

Murabaha payable 

This represents Islamic financing obtained from a local financial institution, carrying an effective 
profit rate of 6% (31 December 2012: profit rate of 6%). This financing is secured by way of 
mortgage of cetiain investments·;aLfak value through statement of income, available for sale 
investments and:tt:~asury slwr~s·.(!Jp!e~ :~_,J.Jand 20). 
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Within one year 

· 31 December 
2013 
KD 

31 December 
2012 
KD 

. :---·~· 

, , ,~;·l;.:·:·<: ,, After one year 

1,600,000 
5,200,000 
6,800,000 

1,600,000 
6,800,000 
8,400,000 

. '· 
. 19 

21 

Share capital and share premium 

As at 31 December 2013, the authorised, Issued and paid up share capital of the parent company 
• -consists of 802,882,570 shares of I 00 fils each (31 December 2012: 802,882,570 shates). All 

·shares are in cash or in kind. 

The share premium is non distributable. 

Treasury shares 

Number of treasury shares 
Percentage of ownership 
Market value (KD) 
Cost (KD) 

31 December 
2013 

5,483,436 
0.683% 
427,708 
597,141 

31 December 
2012 

6,363,449 
0.793% 
445,434 
931,786 

Reserves of the parent company equivalent to the cost of the treasury shares have been earmarked 
as non-distributable. 

Treasury shares amounting to KD 69,062 (31 December 2012: KD 62,006) are pledged against 
murabaha payable (note 18). 

Reserves 

Legal reserve 
In accordance with the Companies Law and the parent company's Articles and Memorandum of 
Association, as amended, 1 0% of the profit for the year attributed to the owners of the parent 
company (before contributions to KFAS, NLST, Zakat and directors' remuneration) is required to 
be transferred to legal reserve. The parent company may resolve tci discontinue such annual 
transfers when the reserve totals 50% of the paid up share capital. No transfer is required in a year 
in which the parent company has incurred a Joss or where cumulative losses exist. 

Distribution of the reserve is limited to the amount required to enable the payment of a dividend 
of 5% of paid up share capital to be made in years when retained earnings are not sufficient for 
the payment of a dividend of that amount. 

Voluntary reserve 
The parent company's Articles of Association, as amended require that 10% of the profit for the 
year attributable to the owners of the parent company (before contributions to KFAS, NLST, 
Zakat and directors' remuneration) should be transferred to voluntary reserve. There are no 
restrictions on distdbution of voluntary reserve. 
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'·.;,,:. (Jformerly }mown as International Finance Company KPSC) and its subsidiaries 
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Not~s tq the consolidated financial statements 
For the y¢ai· ended 31 December 2013 

·_ 2f::f'·:.">GeneJ;al assembly 
. ' ·' ~;·_~:-. . . . -

~- '\ 
-.. :_;?i~~~-:<, ·"· .The.~nnual general assetnbly ofthe shareholders held on 16 May 2013 appi~oved the consolidated 
'· j.: ;~.· .... financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2012 without any dividend distribution . 

. ~i .. t~~ ' . 
. -_·:~(<'--~~:·. \" 

24 

25 

26 

The directors do not propose any dividend for the year ended 31 December 2013. 

Income from instalment c1·edit debtors 

Interest income from instalment credit 
Discount, commission and fees 

Dividend income 

Investments at fair value through statement of income 
Available for sale investments 

Finance costs 

Year ended 
31 December 

2013 
KD 

1,398,797 
216,273 

1,615,070 

Year ended 
31 Decembe1· 

2013 
KD 

356,822 
966,795 

1,323,617 

Year ended 
31 December 

2012 
KD 

2,124,174 
474,016 

2,598,190 

Year ended 
31 December 

2012 
KD 

302,527 
442,168 
744,695 

Finance costs relate to the group's borrowing activities including amounts due to banks, term 
loans and murabaha payable. 

Basic and diluted earnings per sha1·e 

Basic and diluted earnings per share is calculated by dividing the profit for the year attributable to 
the owners of the parent company by the weighted average number of shares outstanding during 
the year excluding treasury shares. 

The parent company had no outstanding dilutive potential shares. 

Year ended 
31 Decembe1· 

Profit for the year attributable to owners of the parei1t 
company (KD) 

Weighted average number of shares outstanding during the 
year (excluding treasury shares)- shares 

Basic and diluted earnings per sha1·e attributable to 
owners of the pate.nt company- Fils 
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2013 

2,371,605 

796,502,656 

2.978 

Year ended 
31 December 

2012 

121,344 

796,510,125 

0.152 
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Net gain I (loss) on financial asset~ 

Net gain/ (loss) on financial assets, analysed by category, is as follows: 

Cash and cash equivalents 
Instalments credit debtors 
Investments at fair value through statement of income 
Held to maturity investment 
Available for sale investments 
Net realised and unrealised gain 
Net unrealised gain directly in equity 

Fiduciary assets 

Year· ended 
31 December 

2013 
KD 

410,626 
3,990,575 

111,889 
44,426 

474,547 
5,032,063 
5,950,274 

10,982,337 

Year ended 
31 December 

2012 
KD 

249,070 
4,265,487 

524,239 
28,201 

(553,967) 
4,513,030 

636,970 
5,150,000 

Investment portfolios managed by the group and assets held in trust or in a fiduciary capacity and 
related liabilities are not treated as the group's assets or liabilities and accordingly are not 
included in the consolidated financial position. Total fiduciary assets as at the financial position 
date were KD 2,456,041 (31 December 2012: KD 2,089,882). 

Segmental information 

Operating segments are identified based on internal management reporting information that is 
regularly reviewed by the chief operating decision maker in order to allocate resources to the 
segment and to assess its performance, and is reconciled to group profit or loss. 

The group's principal trading activities are carried out within the State of Kuwait and all of the 
group's assets and liabilities are located in Kuwait in addition to GCC, Middle East and other 
countries. The gr,oup operates in four business segments; instalm~nt credit, investments, real 
estate and brokerage. The segmental analysis of total income, profit for the year, total assets and 
total liabilities for the business segments are as follows: 

Instalment Real Financial 
credit Investments estate brokerage Total 

KD KD KD KD KD 
Year ended 31 Decembet· 
2013 
Total revenue 4,094,033 4,640,191 346,444 635,056 9,628,338 
Profit for the year 1,373,926 448,466 277,744 167,168 2,267,304 

As at 31 December 2013 
Total assets 23,203,042 123,003,648 6,399,514 19,009,103 171,615,307 
Total liabilities 20,529,972 9,525,319 3,462,410 33,517,701 
Net assets 2,673,070 113,478,329 6,399,514 15,546,693 13 8,097,606 

Year ended 31 December 
2012 
Total revenue/(loss) 4,257,013 I ,462,231 (11,636) 224,397 5,932,005 
Profit/(loss) for the year 1,721,979 ~266,903) (70,701) (1,746,059) (361,684) 

As at 31 December 2012 
Total assets 34,480,352 75,863,145 7,845,969 19,798,172 137,987,638 
Total liabilities 5,463,829 13,160,294 3,287,720 21,911,843 
Net assets ~'~~;.. 29,016,523 62,702,851 7,845,969 16,510,452 116,075,795 

·-
so 

~. ~ 
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-~ . . 
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. .· • .! ;·, ; ... : Related parties represent associates, major shareholders, directors and key management personnel 
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f~·.·.;,.·- · Transactions between the parent company and its subsidiaries which are related parties of the . 41 . parent company have been eliminated on consolidation and are not disclosed in this note. 

1-::c:p,: · · -Details of significant related party transactions and balances are as follows: 
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31.1 

a) 

Consolidated statement of financial position 
Instaltnent credit debtors-gross (note 7) 
Due from related parties 
Due to shareholders (note 16) 
Due to related parties 

Consolidated statement of income 
Reversal of provision for instalment credit debtors 
Interest from instalment credit debtors 
Gain on sale of investment in associate 

· Gain on sale of available for sale investments 
Gain on sale of properties held for trading 
Provision for doubtful debts 
Key management compensation: 
Salaries and other short term benefits 
End of service benefits 

Risk management objectives and policies 

31 December 
2013 
KD 

3,148,937 
108,920 
224,113 
271,060 

31 December 
2012 
KD 

13,379,803 
182,106 
22?,476 

2,222,582 

Year ended 31 December 
2013 2012 
KD KD 

708,363 
184,625 
461,241 

48,712 
603,019 

335,298 
34,492 

281,974 
1,038,611 

318,440 
29,806 

The group's activities expose it to variety of financial risks: market risk, credit risk and liquidity 
risk. 

The parent company's board of directors sets out policies for reducing each of the risks discussed 
below. 

The group does not use derivative financial instruments, for speculative purposes. 

The most significant financial risks to which the group is exposed are described below. 

Market risk 

Foreign currency risl{ 

The group mainly operates in the GCC, other Middle Eastern countries and Europe and is 
exposed to foreign currency risk ari~ing from various foreign currency exposures. For~ign 
exchange risk arises from future ·ec)lnmercial transactions, recognised assets and liabilities and net 
investments i1l. foreign operations . 

.fE!.i.-f.lf:,. 
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· .. · >' · ;:31 .. ~:-;~'Risk management objectives and policies (Continued) 

.. >;/(~~t~f:i,;i~,!~~e; risk (continued) 
. p!.,~::""'/:*~~)>' '":Foreign currency risk (continued) 

· -··(:-~;\'•.__ 'To mitigate the group's exposure to foreign currency risk, non-Kuwaiti Dinar cash flows are 
,,,,_·:._ -monitored in accordance with the group's risk management policj.es. Generally, the group's risk 

_ ,L:;·:·::~/::,:, __ -ni.anagement procedures distinguish short-term foreign currency cash flows (due withii1 twelve 

:"~j;~:,~~~~f;~::::.:~.;·onths) from longer-term cash flows. · 

The group had the following net significant exposures denominated in foreign currencies, 
-tt:anslated into Kuwaiti Dinar at the closing rate: 

b) 

US Dollar 
Lepanese Lira 
GBP 
Egyptian Pound 
UAEDirham 
Bahraini Dinar 
Saudi Riyal 
Euro 
Omani Riyal 
Jordanian Dinar 
South African Rand 

31 December 
2013 

8,192,741 
6,431,914 
4,582,070 
1,586,873 

136,883 
201,148 
(7,908) 

38,099 
843,507 
(27,730) 

31 December 
2012 

8,178,928 
6,87},410 
2,371,704 
1,605,081 

282,164 
558,641 
773,358 
130,655 
46,434 

849,817 
(22,833) 

The following table details the group's sensitivity to a 2% (2012: 2%) increase and decrease in 
the KD against above foreign currencies. The sensitivity analysis includes only outstanding 
foreign currencies denominated monetary assets and liabilities and adjusts their translation at the 
year end for a 2% change in foreign currency rates. A positive number below indicates an 
increase in profit and equity and a negative number indicates decrease in profit and equity. All 
other variables are held constant. There has been no change in the methods and the assumptions 
used in the preparation of the sensitivity analysis. 

Profit/ (loss) for the year 
Equity 

Interest r·ate risk 

+2% 
Impact 

31 December 
2013 
KD 

297,826 
141,726 

+2% 
Impact 

31 December 
2012 
KD 

247,569 
185,378 

-2 '% 
Impact 

31 December 
2013 
KD 

(297,826) 
(141 ,726) 

-2% 
Impact 

31 December 
2012 
KD 

(247,569) 
(185,378) 

Interest rate risk arises from the possibility that changes in interest rates will affect future 
profitability or the fair values of financial instruments. As the group is not exposed to a 
significant interest rate risk on interest bearing assets, the group is exposed to interest rate· risk 
with respect to its borrowings which are both at fixed rate and floating interest-rate. The risk is 
managed by the group by maintaining an appropriate mix between fixed and floating rate 
borrowings. The Board has established levels of interest rate risk by setting limits on the interest 
rate gaps for stipulated periods. 
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31. . ·. W~kma~j;g~;nent objectives and. policies (Continued) 

Ji-~1···_.• ·;Mat;fi~t)·isl{ (continued) 
. - . . ..... -~-.d· . -

·. ;_ >,~~ .'~ -~J:·:·~:·._.;;_>~--
b )· ·. 'lit)~~t~r~s~ rate risk (continued) 

_._ ~ -:- ..... . . 

: ' 

_f;.J)ositi'oris are monitored on a daily basis and hedging 
:)~positions are maintained within established limits. 

strategies used, if required, to ensure \-. ____ . 
_ ...... ,_., .' 

. '-;_ . >·::ffle ~ffective interest rate (effective yield) of a monetary financial instrument is the rate that, 
·._ ,,::~.,:),,:;-.)wheli'~sed in a present value calculation, results in the carrying amount of the instrument. The 
.J.-~~}£1:;;(~"-:;~i'rate•·is a historical rate for a fixed rate instruinent carried at amortised cost and a current rate for a 
- ~~ ':::~~~·~,;/floating rate instrument or an instrument carried at fair value . . , :";<:.:~~::;:·:>··~-· ···~:; . 

' · .< · ' ·,The group's interest rate exposure based on earlier of contractual repricing arrangements and 
<;:.\> rnaturity at 31 December 2013 was as follows: 

"··' 

Assets 
Cash and cash 
equivalents 
histalment credit 
debtors 
Investments at fair 
value through 
statement of 
income 
Held to maturity 
investment 

· Accounts 
receivable and 
other assets 
Due from related 
parties 

Liabilities 
Due to banks 
Accounts payable 
and other liabilities 
Due to related 
parties 
Term loans 
Murabaha payable 
Provision for end 
of service 
indemnity 

Up to 1 
month 

KD 

8,947,736 

1,897,046 

10,844,782 

2,374,655 

2,000,000 
800,000 

5,174,655 

1-3 
months 

KD 

3,114,410 

1,752,484 

4,866,894 

4,000,000 

4,000,000 

3-12 
months 

KD 

3,703,183 

283,050 

3,986,233 

5,190,000 
800,000 

5,990,000 
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Over 1 
:year 
KD 

2,1 OJ ,553 

2,101,553 

4,810,000 
5,200,000 

10,010,000 

Non-interest 
bearing 
items 
KD 

8,120,193 

5,016,378 

108,920 
13,245,491 

7,492,130 

271,060 

579,856 
8,343,046 

Total 
KD 

12,062,146 

9,454,266 

8,120,193 

283,050 

5,016,378 

108,920 
35,044,953 

2,374,655 

7,492,130 

271,060 
16,000,000 
6,800,000 

579,856 
33,517;701 

Effective 
interest 

rate 
(%) 

1.75 

3-9 

15 

4.5 

4.5-5 
6 
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• """ il <>,~)-~.~;· · Interes~ mte risk (continued) 

P The group's interest rate exposure based on earlier of contractual repricing arrangements and c~:-, maturity at 31 December 2012 was as follows: . 
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Assets (restated) 
Cash and cash 
equivalents 
Instalment credit 
debtors 
Investments at fair 
value through 
statement of 
income 
Held to maturity 
investment 
Accounts 
receivable and 
other assets 
Due from related 
parties 

Up to 1 
month 

KD 

5,718,071 

918,184 

6,636,255 

Liabilities (rest a ted) 
Due to banks 2,040,297 
Accounts payable 
and other liabilities 
Due to related 
parties 
Term loans 
Murabaha payable 
Provision for end 
of service 
indemnity 

800,000 

2,840,297 

1-3 
months 

KD 

2,788,792 

1,011,110 

3-12 
months 

KD 

16,889,044 

283,050 

Over 1 
year 
KD 

4,302,159 

3,799,902 17,172,094 4,302,159 

101,891 . 346,873 30,219 

426,700 1,280,100 
800,000 6,800,000 

528,591 2,426,973 6,830,219 

intet·est 
bearing 
.items 

KD 

7,626,053 

Total 
KD 

8,506,863 

23,120,497 

7,626,053 

283,050 

5,029,119 5,029,119 

182,106 182,106 

12,837,278 44,747,688 

2,519,280 

6,5'67,527 6,567,527 

2,222,582 2,222,582 
I, 706,800 
8,400,000 

495,654 495,654 

9,285,763 21,911,843 

Effective 
interest 

rate 
(%) 

1.75 

3-9 

15 

4.5 

5.5 
6 

The following table illustrates the sensitivity of the result for the year to a reasonably possible 
change in interest rates of+ I% and -1% (20 12: + 1% and -1%) with effect from the beginning of 
the year. These changes are considered to be reasonably possible based on observation of current 
market condition. The calculations are based on the group's financial instruments held at each 
financial position date. All other variables are held constant. 

Profi1/(loss) for the year 
Equity 

31 December 2013 
+1% 
KD 

(33,752) 
. (33,752). 
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-1% 
KD 

33,752 
33,752 

31 Decembet· 2012 
+1% 
KD 

192,843 
192,843 

-1% 
KD 

(192843) 
(192843) 
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c) 

Risk management objectives and policies (Continued) 

Market risk (continued) 

Price risk 

The group is exposed to equity price risk with respect to its equity investments. Equity 
investments are classified either as investments at fair value through statement of income 
(including trading securities), at1d available for sale investments. 

To manage its price risk arising from investments in equity securities, the group diversifies its 
p01ifolio. Diversification of the portfolio is done in accordance with the limits set by the group. 

The sensitivity analyses below have been determined based on the exposure to equity price risks 
at the consolidated financial statements date. 

If equity prices had been 10% higher/lower, the effect on the profit/ (loss) for the year and equity 
for the years ended 31 December 2013 and 2012 would have been as follows: 

Investments at fair value 
through statement of income 
Available for sale jnvestments 

Profit/(loss) for the year Equity 
31 December 31 December 31 December 31 December 

2013 2012 2013 2012 
KD _ _:_:_K:..;_D=--------::::cK::-:-D-- KD 

±812,019 ±762,605 ±812,019 
±7,597,378 

±762,605 
±5,179,583 

31.2 Credit risk 

Credit risk is the risk that one party to a financial instnunent will fail to discharge an obligation 
and cause the other party to incur a financial loss. The group's credit policy and exposure to 
credit risk is monitored on an ongoing basis. The group seeks to avoid undue concentrations of 
risks with individuals or groups of customers in specific locations or business through 
diversification of its activities. It also obtains security when appropriate. 

The group's exposure to credit risk is limited to the carrying amounts of financial assets 
recognised at the financial position date, as summarised below: 

Cash and cash equivalents 
Instalment credit debtors 
Investments at fair value through statement of income (note 8) 
Held to maturity investment 
Accounts receivable and other assets 
Due.from related parties 
Total 

31 December 
2013 
KD 

12,062,146 
9,454,266 
5,910,407 

283,050 
5,016,378 

108,920 
32,835,167 

Information on otl1,~~- significant <:;oncyntrations of credit risk is set out in note 31.3. 
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31 December 
2012 (restated) 

KD 

8,506,863 
23,120,497 

6,071,685 
283,050 

5,029,119 
182,106 

43,193,320 

i 

_..., 
I 
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At 31 December 2013 

GCC 
KD 

Eastern 
countries 

KD 

USA, 
Europe 

and other 
KD 

Total 
KD 

Cash and cash eqtiivalents 
· · ·. Instalment credit debtors 

7,312,605 
4,218,754 

394,296 3,905,833 
5,235,512 

449,412 12,062,146 
9,454,266 

31.4 

Investments at fair value 
through statement of income 
Held to maturity investment 
Accounts receivable and other 
assets 

Due fi·om related parties 
Properties held for trading 
Available for sale investments 
Investment in associates 
Investment properties 
Property and equipment 
Total 

At 31 December 2012 
(restated) 
Cash and cash equivalents 
Instalment credit debtors 
Investments at fair value 
through statement of income 
Held to maturity investment 
Accounts receivable and other 
assets 
Due from related pmties 
Properties held for trading 
Available for sale investments 

Investment in associates 
Investment prope1ties 
Property and equipment 

Liquidity risk 

7,928,896 

412,750 
52,759 

68,887,465 
28,556,312 

1,950,185 
2,589,228 

121,908,954 

Kuwait 
KD 

3,051,18 I 
17,277,271 

7,361,521 

842,105 
28,672 

42,514,238 

30,3 84,581 
2,009,247 
2,634,577 

106,103,393 

69,649 

1,635,265 
782,097 

10,226 
2,891,533 

GCC 
KD 

1,878 

2,981,767 
1,897,738 

4,881,383 

191,297 

3,602,241 
56,161 

108,125 

126,179 
13,225,348 

Other 
Middle 
Eastem 

countries 
KD 

5,110,337 
5,843,226 

264,532 

1,859,312 
153,434 

137,857 

154,662 
13,523,360 

283,050 

931,738 

214,064 
6,196,097 

25,515,111 

33,589,472 

USA,. 
Europe and 

other 
KD 

343,467 

283,050 

2,327,702 

254,955 
7,245,996 

8,120,193 
283,050 

5,016,378 
. 108,920 

1,849,329 
75,973,784 
54,071,423 

1,950,185 
2,725,633 

171,615,307 

Total 
KD 

8,506,863 
23,120,497 

7,626,053 
283,050 

5,029,119 
182,106 

3,236,722 
51,795,829 

3,024,333 33,408,914 
2,009,247 
2,789,239 

13,479,503 137,987,639 

Liquidity risk is the risk that the group will be unable to meet its liabilities when they fall due. To 
limit this risk, management has arranged 'diversified funding sources, manages assets with 
liquidity in mind, a.nd monitors 'liquidity on a daily basis. · 

""~' .,:;,;'... ' . '-:- . - . . . : .... 
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~· . ' 3~· .. s!!,iSk management objectives and policies (Continued) 

t~~ · .. -~ .. ; 31.4 ''~}:~~qnidity risk (continued) . 

il ... ·.. · '· ·-, .. :;·;.'The table below summarises the maturity profile of the group's assets and liabilities. The 

r
. · ~ · . :, ~~{:~inaturities of assets and liabilities have been determined on the basis of the remaining period from 

. ~ ·. ~:',ii·~~.: the financial position date to the contractual maturity date. The maturity profile for available for 

'~ .' , t;~~ii~~';,.,~~~~;ments is de!ecmined based on managemenrs estimate of liquidation of those 
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.Maturity prof) le of assets and liabilities at 31 December 2013: · 

ASSETS 
Cash and cash 
equivalents 
Instalment credit 
debtors 

Investments at fair 
value through 
·statement of income 

Held to maturity 
investment 

Accounts receivable 
and other assets 

Due from related 
parties 

Properties held for 
trading 

Available for sale 
investments 

Investment in 
associates 

Investment properties 

P1:operty and 
equipment 

Total assets 

LIABILITIES 
· Du.e to banks 

Accounts payable 
and other liabilities 

Due to related parties 

Term loans 

Murabaha payable 

Provision for end of 
service indemnity 
Total liabilities 

Up to 
1 month 

KD 

8,947,736 

1,897,046 

8,120,193 

139,122 

19,104,097 

2,374,655 

1,086,018 

2,000,000 

800,000 

6,260,673 

1-3 
months 

KD 

3,114,410 

I ,752,484 

3,508,355 

8,375,249 

3,135,647 

4,000,000 

7,135,647 

5.7 

3-12 
months 

KD 

3,703,183 

283,050 

I ,353,959 

108,920 

1,849,329 

7,298,441 

441,939 

271,060 

5,190,000 

800,000 

6,702,999 

Sub-total 
Up to 

__!_y~ 
KD 

12,062,146 

7,352,713 

8,120,193 

283,050 

5,001,436 

108,920 

1,849,329 

34,777,787 

2,374,655 

4,663,604 

271,060 

11,190,000 

1,600,000 

20,099,319 

Over 
1 year 

Jill 

2,101,553 

14,942 

75,973,784 

54,071,423 

I ,950,185 

2,725,633 
136,837,520 

2,828,526 

4,810,000 

5,200,000 

579,856 
13,418382 

Total 
KD 

12,062,146 

9,454,266 

8,120,193 

283,050 

5,016,378 

108,920 

I ,849,329 

75,973,784 

54,071,423 

1,950,185 

2,725,633 
171,615,307 

2,374,655 

7,492,130 

271,060 

16,000,000 

6,800,000 

579,856 
33,517,701 
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements 
For the year ended 31 December 2013 

31. Risk management objectives and policies (Continued) 

31.4 Liquidity risk (continued) 

Maturity profile of assets and liabilities at 31 December 2012: 

Sub~total 

Up to 1-3 3~ll Up to Over 
1 month months months 1 rear 1 rear Total 

KD KD KD KD KD KD 
ASSETS (restated) 
Cash and cash 
equivalents 5,718,070 2,788,793 8,506,863 8,506,863 
Instalment credit 
debtors 918,184 1,011,110 16,889,044 18,818,338 4,302,159 23,120,497 
Investments at fair 
value through 
statement of 
income 7,626,053 7,626,053 7,626,053 
Held to maturity 
investment 283,050 283,050 283,050 
Accounts 
receivable and 
other assets 743,839 1,757,993 225,768 2,727,600 2,301,518 5,029,119 
Due from related 
parties 182,106 182,106 182,106 
Properties held for 
trading 3,236,722 3,236,722 3,236,722 
Available for sale 
investments 51,795,829 51,795,829 
Investment in 

I 
associates 33,408,914 33,408,914 
Investment 
properties 2,009,247 2,009,247 

I 
Property and 
equipment 2,789,239 2,789,239 
Total assets 15,006,146 5,557,896 20,816,690 41,380,732 96,606,906 137,987,639 

I LIABILITIES (restated) 
Due to banks 2,040,297 101,891 346,873 2,489,061 30,219 2,519,280 
Accounts payable 

I and other liabilities 347,409 2,158,077 1,410,407 3,915,893 2,651,634 6,567,527 
Due to related 2,222,582 
parties 2,222,582 2,222,582 

I 
Term loans 426,700 1,280,100 1,706,800 1,706,800 
Murabaha payable 800,000 800,000 1,600,000 6,800,000 8,400,000 
Provision for end 
of service 
indemnity 495,654 495,654 
Total liabilities 3,187,706 2,686,668 6,059,962 11,934,336 9,977,507 21,911,843 
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.31. Risl{ management objectives and policies (Continued) 

, :3L4 Liquidity risk (continued) .. 
"."""\ 

~ The contractual maturity profile of the financial liabilities based on undiscounted cash flow is as 
follows: 

lk"""l \): Sub-total I _!" 
Up to 1-3 3-12 Up to Over r .. 1 month months months 1 rear 1 ,Year Total ·Li ·l* KD KD KD KD KD ·KD 

·"I: 31 December 2013 r< Financial liabilities 

L-1 Due to banks 2,434,655 2,434,655 2,434,655 
Accounts ,r·· payable and 

~ 
other 
liabilities 1,086,018 3,135,647 441,939 4,663,604 2,828,526 7,492,130 
Due to related r'. parties 271,060 271,060 271,060 

L~ Term loans 2,065,397 4,092,042 5,754,523 11,911,962 6,361,664 18,273,626 ·~ 
ri Murabaha 

~ payable 827,014 50,137 1,009,041 1,886,192 5,220,658 7,106,850 

L.l Provision for 
' i;~ end of service 

.\ 
indemnity 579,856 579,856 

[I 6,413,084 7,277,826 7,476,563 21,167,473 14,990,704 36,158,177 
l': 

~· 
31 December 2012 (restated) 
Fin a nciallia bilities 

·~ 
Due to banks 2,160,794 101,891 346,873 2,609,558 30,219 2,639,777 

c, Accounts 
payable and 
other 
liabilities 347,409 2,158,077 1,410,407 3,915,893 2,651,634 6,567,527 

[. Due to related 
parties 2,222,582 2,222,582 2,222,582 

m [. 
Term loans 441,360 1,315,715 1,757,075 1,757,075 
Murabaha 
payable 843,381 76,208 1,123,178 2,042,767 7,168,219 9,210,986 

:I Provision for 
end of service [:' indemnity 495,654 495,654 

3,351,584 2,777,536 6,418,755 12,547,875 10,345,726 22,893,601 , I 
I' if,, 

[I 1 . ,. 
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II~[·-- . : ,,~2_:_~_,_~''• :::::::;:.::::;::.:::and liabmties by category 

_ _ The carrying amounts of the group's financial assets and liabilities as stated in the consolidated 
1 statement of financial position may also be categorised as follows: 
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Financial assets: 
. Loans and receivables at amortised cost: 
Cash and cash equivalents 
Instalments credit debtors 
Accounts receivable and other assets 
Due from related pmiies 

Held to maturity investments at amortised cost: 
Held to maturity investment 

Investments at fair value through statement of income: 
Investments at fair value through statement of income 

Available for sale investments: 
Available for sale investments 
Total 

Financial liabilities: 
Financial liabilities at amortised cost 
Due to banks 
Accounts payable and other liabilities 
Due to related pmiies 
Term loans 
Murabaha payable 
Provision for end of service indemnity 
Total 

31 December 
2013 
KD 

12,062,146 
9,454,266 
5,016,378 

108,920 

283,050 

8,120,193 

73,218,637 
108,263,590 

2,374,655 
7,492,130 

271,060 
16,000,000 

6,80.Q,OOO 
579,856 

33,517,701 

(Restated) 
31 December 

2012 
KD 

8,506,863 
23,120,497 

5,029,119 
182,106 

283,05_0 

7,626,053 

48,972,796 
93,720,483 

2,519,280 
6,567,527 
2,222,582 
1,706,800 
8,400,000 

495,654 
21,911,843 

Fair value represents the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability 
in an orderly transaction between market pmiicipants at the measurement date. 

In the opinion of management, except for certain available for sale investments which are carried 
at cost for reasons specified in note 11 to these consolidated financial statements, the carrying 
amounts of financial assets and liabilities as at 31 December 2013 approximate their fair values. 

Financial instruments measured at fair value 
The following table presents financial assets and liabilities measured at fair value in the 
consolidated statement of financial position in accordance with the fair value hierarchy. 

The following table provides an analysis of financial instruments that are measured subsequent to 
initial recognition at fair value, grouped into Levels 1 to 3 based on the degree to which the fair 
value is observable: 
• Level 1 fair value measurements are those derived from quoted prices (unadjusted) in active 

markets for identical assets or liabilities; 
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Arzan Financial Group for Financing and Investment KJ>sc 
(Formerly lmown as International Finance Company KPSC) and its subsidiaries 
Kuwait · · 

Notes to the consolidated financial statements 
For the year en de~ 31 December 2013 

32. Summary of financial assets and liabilities by category (Continued) 

Financial instruments measured at fair value (continued) 
• Level 2 fair value measurements are those derived from inputs other than quoted prices 

included within Level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability, either directly (i.e. as 
prices) or indirectly (i.e. derived from prices); and 

• Level 3 fair value measurements are those derived from valuation techniques that include 
inputs for the. asset or liability that are not based on observable market data (unobservable 
inputs). 

The level within which the financial asset or liability is classified is determined based on the 
lowest level of significant input to the fair value measurement. · 

The financial assets and liabilities measured at fair value on a recurring basis in the consolidated 
statement of financial position are grouped into the fair value hierarchy as follows: 

31 December 2013 
Levell Level2 ·Level3 Total 

KD KD KD KD 
Investments at fair value 
tlu·ough statement of income: 
Local quoted shares 2,018,491 2,018,491 
Foreign quoted shares 191,595 191,595 
Investment in managed portfolios 5,910,407 5,910,407 

Available for sale investments: 
Local quoted shares 39,653,408 39,653,408 
Local unquoted shares 24,128,543 24,128,543 
Foreign unquoted shares 5,809,600 5,809,600 
Investment in managed portfolios 3,437,633 3,437,633 
Investment funds 189,453 189,453 

51,211,534 189,453 29,938,143 81,339,130 

31 December 2012 
Levell Level2 Level3 Total 

KD KD KD KD 
Investments at fair value 
through statement of income: 
Local quoted shares 1,289,837 1,289,837 
Foreign quoted shares 264,531 264,531 
Investment in managed pmifo1ios 6,071,685 6,071,685 

Available for sale investments: 
Local quoted shares 23,267,347 23,267,347 
Local unquoted shares 15,684,745 15,684,745 
Foreign unquoted shares 7,255,418 7,255,418 
Investment in managed portfolios 2,545,007 2,545,007 
Investment funds 220,279 220,279 

33,438,407 220,279 22,940,163 56,598,849 

There have been no transfers between levels during the reporting period. 
The valuation techniques and significant unobservable inputs used in determining the fair value 
measnrement of level 2 and level 3 financial instruments, as well as the inter-relationship between 
key unobservabh~if'iputs and fair value, are set out below. 
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Other unquoted equity securities are valued using cash flow projections based on financial 
estimates approved by senior management The growth rates used to arrive at the terminal value 
ranged from 2% to 3%. Further the revenue growth prqjections are based on the assessment of the 
future business growth. · 

Key assumptions used in fair value calculations 
The calculation of fair value is most sensitive to the following assumptions: 
• Discount rates; 
• Growth rates used to extrapolate cash flows beyond the budget period; 
• Local inflation rates. · 

Discount rates 
Discount rates are calculated by using risk free rate, equity market risk premium, beta factor and 
company specific risk premium (alpha factor). 

Market share assumptions 
These assumptions, as well as use of industry data for growth rates, are impmiant as the entity's 
relative position to its competitors might change over the budget perierd. 

Projected growth rates and local inflation rates 
Assumptions are based on references from published industry research repmis. 

Funds and managed portfolios have been valued based on Net Asset Value (NAV) of the fund 
provided by the fund manager. 

Gains or losses recognised in the consolidated statement of income for the year are included in on 
loss on sale of available for sale investments. -

Changing inputs to the level 3 valuations to reasonably possible alternative assumptions would 
not change significantly amounts recognised in the consolidated statement of income, total assets, 
total liabilities 01' total equity. 

There were no changes to the valuation techniques during the year. 

Fair val tie measm·ements 
The group measureme11t of financial assets and liabilities classifted in level 3 uses valuation 
techniques inputs that are not based on observable market date. The financial instruments within 
this level can be reconciled from beginning to ending balances as follows: 

62 

I 

I 

- ' ·~ 



I 

I 

I 

I 

I 
[ 

Arzan Financial Group for Financing and Investment KPSC 
(Formerly known as International Finance Company KPSC) and its subsidiaries 
Kuwait 

Notes to the consolidated financial statements 
For the year ended 31 December 2013 

32. Summary of financial assets and liabilities by category (Continued) 

Fair value measurements (continued) 

33 

Opening balance 
Change in fair value 
Additions during the year: 
- Purchases 
Closing balance 
Total amount included in consolidated statement of 
income for unrealised gains on level3 assets 

31 December 
2013 
KD 

22,940,163 
(1,801,307) 

8,799,287 
29,938,143 

31 December 
2012 
KD 

10,379,625 
8,980,977 

3,579,561 
22,940,163 

Changing inputs to the level3 valuations to reasonably possible alternative assumption would not 
change significantly amounts recognised in profit or loss, total assets or total liabilities or total 
equity. 

Non-financial instruments 
Investment properties were fair valued at 31 December 2013 and are classified under level3 fair 
value hierarchy and reconciliation is provided in note 13. 

Description of significant unobservable inputs to valuation of non-financial assets: 
Fair value of investment properties were determined using Mark to Market method, conducted by 
valuators considering transaction prices of the property and similar properties. The significant 
unobservable valuation input used for the purpose of valuation is the market price per square foot 
I meter and varies from property to property. A reasonable change in this input would result in an 
equivalent amount of change in fair value. 

Capital risk management 

The group's capital management objectives are to ensure the group's ability to continue as a 
going concern and to provide adequate return to its shareholders through the optimisation of the 
capital structure. 

The group manages the capital structure and makes adjustments in the light of changes in 
economic conditions and risk characteristics of the underlying assets. In order to maintain or 
adjust the capital structure, the group may adjust the amount of dividends paid to shareholders, 
return capital to shareholders, issue new shares or sell assets to reduce debt. 

The capital structure of the group consists of the following: 

Due to banks (note 15) 
Term loans (note 17) 
Murabaha payable (note 18) 
Less: Cash and cash equivalents (note 6) 
Net debt 
Equity 
Net debt to equity ratio 
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31 December 
2013 
KD 

2,374,655 
16,000,000 
6,800,000 

(12,062,146) 
13,112,509 

127,389,282 
10.29% 

31 December 
2012 
KD 

2,519,280 
1,706,800 
8,400,000 

(8,506,863) 
4,119,217 

113,503,526 
3.63% 




